
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




Kiwanis Capital District 
2023 Midyear Conference Report 


 
Conference Dates:  March 3-5, 2023 
Conference Location:  Hyatt Regency Hotel—Arlington, Virginia 
 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 
Jennifer Mackowski, Fredericksburg 
Katie Clister, Arlington 
Tim Collins, Fredericksburg 
Rob Dodd, Jr., Fredericksburg 
Tim Gillette, Leesburg 
Connie Knisley, Tuckahoe 
Eric Lamb, Charlottesville 
Ronesha Prioleau, Mitchellville 
Catie Dugan Vargas, Tysons 
Stacy Whitehouse, Tysons 
Jeffrey Wolff, Tysons 
Jen Wolff, Tysons 
 
Note: Capital District CKI hosted their annual Convention in tandem at the same hotel. Their attendance, 
itinerary, and budget is not depicted in this report.  
 
ATTENDANCE  


 


Attendees 136 


Guests 16 
CKI Guests 1 


Key Club Guests 1 


District Lt. Governors 15 


 
 
MEETINGS & EVENTS 


FRIDAY, MARCH 3, 2023 


Meetings • Board of Trustees Meeting 


• Foundation Board Meeting 


Meals • Achievement Dinner 
(21-22 Achievement Awards) 
- Presentation of the Colors by BSA Troop 17 
- Dinner Entertainment by Main Attraction Performing Arts Center 


Dance Company 


Other • Smithsonian Museum Outing 


• Paint & Sip by Wine & Design 


 







SATURDAY, MARCH 4, 2023 


 


Meetings • Lt. Governors Meeting 


Meals • Opening Breakfast 
- Best Practices Session, Eric Lamb 
- Other Speakers: Ed Daley, Art Riley) 


• Kiwanis Family Luncheon 
- Best Practices Session, Eric Lamb 
- CKI Award Presentations 
- Other speakers: Izza Ahmad (Key Club Governor), Akilah Richards 


(CKI Governor), Jennifer Wolff (Kiwanis Governor) 


• Dinner & Art Auction 
- Art Auction supporting the Duke Ellington School of the Arts 
- Entertainment by Not Just Dance Theatrical Arts Studio 


Workshops • Club Presidents Check-in, Jen Wolff 


• How to Build Club Energy, Susan Knick 


• Secretary/Treasurer Time with the Executive Director, PG Jeffrey 
Wolff 


• The Playdough Principle (an exercise in leadership and flexibility), Eric 
Lamb 


• Leading Students in Todays World (Mental Health, Sensitivity, and 
more), Jamie Moore, Jeannette Ogilvie 


• Team Building and How it Works, Lynnette Embree 


• Effective Communications (The Who, Why, What & Where of 
Communications), Krista Latchaw 


• Membership: Ask Those Who Might have a Different Perspective Than 
You, Rhonda Vrell 


• How to Build Relationships in Your Community, Sam Bosserman 


• How to Know if Your Club Needs a Coach/Techniques, PG Dennis 
Baugh 


• Capital by the Numbers (A Discussion About Where We are According 
to Stats and Where are We Going), Time Gillette 


•  Kiwanis Family Roundtable, Jen Wolff, Akilah Richards, Izza Ahmed, 
Catie Dugan Vargas, and Kristina Dlugozima 


• Looking Inward: Improving Inclusive Practices Within Your Club, John 
Hiscock and the Capital Kiwanis Family Committee on Diversity, 
Equity, Inclusion & Belonging 


• A New Kiwanians perspective (what are new Kiwanians saying?), 
Cheryl Kirby, Matt Laird & Michelle LaRose 


• Kiwanis Engage, Jeffrey Wolff 


•  


Other • Divisional/Regional Elections 


• Governor’s Reception 


 


 







SUNDAY, MARCH 5, 2023 


Meetings n/a 


Meals • Inspirational Breakfast  
- Keynote Speaker: Jeff Poulin, Found of Creative Generation 


“Catalyzing Creativity for Good” 


Other • Service Project: Oakridge Elementary School—planting and paiting 


 


 


BUDGET 


Revenue: 


Revenue Projected Actuals 


Registration and Event Fees $33,360.00 $28,086.53 


Fundraising $0.00 $590.00 


Advertising/Sponsorship $3750.00 $1,823.85 


Total $37,110.00 $30,500.38 


 


Expenses: 


Expenses Projected Actuals 


Entertainment and AV $2,500.00 $2,999.97 


Meals $24,800.00 $18,187.81 
Registration Fees and Materials 
(and misc.) 


$3,850.00 $3,178.99 


Speakers Fees $2100.00 $1,000.00 


Travel-Hotels/Lodging $2,742.00 $5,335.84 
Total $35,992.00 $30,702.61 


 


Net Operating Revenue                  Projected: $1,118.00            Actual: ($202.23) 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







CLUBS REPRESENTED AT MIDYEAR 


Club 
# 


Attendees 


Key Club District Governor 1 


CKI District Governor 1 


Alexandria 3 


Arlington 4 


Ashland 3 


Beckley 1 


Bethesda 2 


Blue Ridge, Winchester 1 


Botetourt County, Troutville 1 


Bridgeville 2 


Capital - Next Generation e Club 4 


Carrollton 2 


Charles Town 1 


Charlottesville 6 


Chesapeake 3 


Chester 1 


Christiansburg 2 


Churchland, Portsmouth 1 


Crofton 1 


Danville 2 


Eastern Branch, Washington 3 


East Huntington 2 


Ellicott City 1 


Fairfax 2 


Fairmont 1 


Forest 1 


Frederick, MD 3 


Fredericksburg 3 


Front Royal 1 


Grafton 1 


Greater Hilton 1 


Greater Millsboro 2 


Haymarket-Gainesville 1 


Huntington 1 


Jackson River Area 2 


Leesburg 4 


Leisure World, Silver Spring 1 


Lynchburg 2 


Manassas 1 


Middlesex, Saluda 2 


Midlothian-Chesterfield 1 


Mitchellville 3 


Mount Airy 1 


Mount Vernon, Fairfax County 1 


North Parkersburg 1 


Old Town 1 


Petersburg 1 


Poquoson 1 


Reisterstown 1 


Richmond 3 


Roanoke 4 


Rockville 1 


Severna Park 1 


Shepherdstown 2 


Shepherd Park-Washington 2 


South Arlington 1 


Southwest Waterfront Washington DC 1 


Staunton 1 


Suncrest Area, Morgantown 1 


Towson-Timonium 1 


Tuckahoe, Richmond 1 


Tysons 6 


Virginia Beach 1 


Washington 4 


Waynesboro 4 


Weirton 1 


Westminster 4 


Wheaton-Silver Spring 1 


Williamsburg 4 


Winchester 3 


Woodbridge 1 


 








CAPITAL DISTRICT KIWANIS INTERNATIONAL 
Quarterly	  Committee	  Report	  &	  Committee	  Evaluation	  


	  
	  
Committee:	  	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	   Date:	  	  
	  
Chairperson:	  
	  
To	  be	  completed	  by	  the	  Committee	  Chairperson	  and	  submitted	  to	  the	  District	  Secretary	  and	  
supervising	  District	  Trustee	  no	  later	  than	  21	  days	  before	  each	  quarterly	  District	  Board	  Meeting.	  
	  
1.	  COMMITTEE	  MEMBERSHIP	  
Committee	  fully	  staffed:	  Yes	  ___	   No	  ___	  [Note:	  Regions	  without	  representation	  below.]	  
	  
	  
	   	  	  
	  
	   	  
	  
	  
2.	  KIWANIS	  YEAR	  GOALS	  (list	  all	  committee’s	  annual	  goals)	   	   	  
	  


GOAL	   %	  Complete	  
	   	  


	   	  


	   	  


	   	  


	   	  


	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  







	   	   	  	  	  	  	  	  February	  8,	  2012	   	   	  


	  
3.	  CHALLENGES	  OR	  ASSISTANCE	  NEEDED	  (use	  continuation	  sheet	  if	  necessary):	  
	   	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
4.	  COMMENTS	  (use	  continuation	  sheet	  if	  necessary):	  	  	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
SIGNED:	  ____________________________________________________________________________________________________________	  





		GOALRow1: Reach out to broadcast stations and encourage airing Kiwanis International PSA's

		 CompleteRow1: 10

		GOALRow2: Increase presence on social media

		 CompleteRow2: 25

		GOALRow3: 

		 CompleteRow3: 

		GOALRow4: 

		 CompleteRow4: 

		GOALRow5: 

		 CompleteRow5: 

		CommitteeName: Public Relations

		Date: April 26, 2023

		Chairperson: Joe Flanagan

		FullyStaffedYes: Yes

		FullyStaffedNo: Off

		MembershipNotes: 

		Challenges: 

		Comments:      Need to reach out to other committee members and do a group chat.

		Signature: 








CAPITAL DISTRICT KIWANIS INTERNATIONAL 
Quarterly)Committee)Report)&)Committee)Evaluation)


!
!
Committee:!! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! Date:!!
)
Chairperson:!
!
To!be!completed!by!the!Committee!Chairperson!and!submitted!to!the!District!Secretary!and!
supervising!District!Trustee!no!later!than!21!days!before!each!quarterly!District!Board!Meeting.!
)
1.!COMMITTEE!MEMBERSHIP!
Committee)fully)staffed:)Yes)___) No)___)[Note:)Regions)without)representation)below.])
)
)
) ))
)
) )
)
)
2.!KIWANIS!YEAR!GOALS)(list)all)committee’s)annual)goals)) ) )
)


GOAL) %)Complete)
) )


) )


) )


) )


) )


)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)







) ) ))))))February)8,)2012) ) )


)
3.)CHALLENGES!OR!ASSISTANCE!NEEDED)(use)continuation)sheet)if)necessary):)
) )
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
4.)COMMENTS)(use)continuation)sheet)if)necessary):)))
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
SIGNED:)____________________________________________________________________________________________________________)





		CommitteeName: Partnership Coordinator (Key Position)	

		Date: 27 April 2023

		Chairperson: Ron McCallum

		FullyStaffedYes: 

		FullyStaffedNo: Yes

		MembershipNotes: Since the inception of the District Partnership Coordinator position by KI in 2016, it has been deemed a "Key" District Staff Position, and as such a "one man band", with no regional representation and not a committee per se.  Awareness of Kiwanis International, regional, and local partnerships could be increased by developing a network of Kiwanis Partnership Advocates, initially within each region, with the possibility of further expanding to each Division.  This probably needs additional discussion prior to implementation.

		GOALRow1: Ensure Clubs are receiving important information on Kiwanis Partnerships, including giving presentations to Clubs and DCMs, as requested

		 CompleteRow1: 65%

		GOALRow2: Support Clubs in developing Signature Projects; Support CDK Signature Project Contest selection process

		 CompleteRow2: 60%

		GOALRow3: Help form new partnerships in selected regions, applicable to those areas

		 CompleteRow3: 50%

		GOALRow4: Support introduction of new partnerships within the District focused on Kiwanis Children's Fund Cause Areas of Health and Nutrition, Education and Literacy, and Youth Leadership Development.

		 CompleteRow4: 45%

		GOALRow5: Develop a network of Kiwanis Partnership Advocates, initially within each region, with the possibility of expanding to each Division, to improve awareness of Kiwanis International, regional, and local partnerships.

		 CompleteRow5: 45%

		Challenges: Need to increase awareness and develop support among District Trustees and LTGs for a network of Kiwanis Partnership Advocates, initially within each region, with the possibility of expanding to each Division, to improve awareness of Kiwanis International,regional, and local partnerships.  2022 DCON workshop on "The Power of Partnerships" was a first step in the process.

		Comments: Provided a DCON workshop on "The Power of Partnerships": Kids need Kiwanis. By combining resources and people power, Capital District clubs can find new ways of reaching the kids. That’s why Kiwanis International seeks out partners whose missions align with ours. DCON workshop attendees learned more about the partners who help Kiwanis clubs change children’s lives.  Partnerships can make service easier, increase a club’s purchasing power and even result in benefits and rewards for members.  Attendees also learned how to develop new partnerships in their local community.

		Signature: Ron McCallum, Capital District Partnership Coordinator








CAPITAL DISTRICT KIWANIS INTERNATIONAL 
Quarterly	  Committee	  Report	  &	  Committee	  Evaluation	  


	  
	  
Committee:	  	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	   Date:	  	  
	  
Chairperson:	  
	  
To	  be	  completed	  by	  the	  Committee	  Chairperson	  and	  submitted	  to	  the	  District	  Secretary	  and	  
supervising	  District	  Trustee	  no	  later	  than	  21	  days	  before	  each	  quarterly	  District	  Board	  Meeting.	  
	  
1.	  COMMITTEE	  MEMBERSHIP	  
Committee	  fully	  staffed:	  Yes	  ___	   No	  ___	  [Note:	  Regions	  without	  representation	  below.]	  
	  
	  
	   	  	  
	  
	   	  
	  
	  
2.	  KIWANIS	  YEAR	  GOALS	  (list	  all	  committee’s	  annual	  goals)	   	   	  
	  


GOAL	   %	  Complete	  
	   	  


	   	  


	   	  


	   	  


	   	  


	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  







	   	   	  	  	  	  	  	  February	  8,	  2012	   	   	  


	  
3.	  CHALLENGES	  OR	  ASSISTANCE	  NEEDED	  (use	  continuation	  sheet	  if	  necessary):	  
	   	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
4.	  COMMENTS	  (use	  continuation	  sheet	  if	  necessary):	  	  	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
SIGNED:	  ____________________________________________________________________________________________________________	  





		GOALRow1: Review the ToY District applicatio and amend as necessary by October 31, 2022.

		 CompleteRow1: 100

		GOALRow2: Send application details to all Lt Governors.  Request that Lt Governors encourage Club Presidents to distribute applixcation materials to all schools including public, private, charter and parochial schools by November 15, 2022.  Materials were 

		 CompleteRow2: 100

		GOALRow3: Follow up with Lt Governors to ensure that application materials were received and distributed to each club,  Where and when it is needed, assist assist each Lt Governor educated district members about the ToY program by December 1, 2022.

		 CompleteRow3: 100

		GOALRow4: Ensure that all clubs have received application materials and were reviewing them by February 1, 2023.

		 CompleteRow4: 100

		GOALRow5: Have club winners submitted to Lt Governors by March 1, 2023.  Have Lt Governors submit division winners to the ToY chairman by April 3, 2023.  Have the district committee certify its winner to the District Governor by May 1, 2023. 

		 CompleteRow5: 100

		CommitteeName: Teenager of the Year Award

		Date: 04/27/2023

		Chairperson: Rocco Cipriano

		FullyStaffedYes: Yes

		FullyStaffedNo: Off

		MembershipNotes: It is not necessary for the District committee for judging to be appointed until after January 1, 2022.  Committee will be completely staffed in March 2023 with recommendations by the District Governor and those of the chairman.  As of March 1, the other district committee members included Mary Hester Anton, Catherine Cummins and Wesley Brown.

		Challenges: All work at the district committee level is anticipated to be conducted through emails andZoom conference calls.  No budget requests are wnticipated other than the actual stipend ($2,500) and travel to district convention by the district ToY finalist and his/her parents or guardians.

		Comments: District Secretary Jeff Wollf has been extremely helpful in accepting all of my edits for the ToY program on the Capital District website and has also assisted in distributing my initial correspondence to all of the Lt Governors.  On  25 April 2023, the District Committee selected Ava Stamatakis (Division 4) as the Ca[ital District's ToY.  Ava was selected from a strong slate of applicants from a total of 9 divisions.  Hopefully even more divisions will participate in 2023-24.  During the judging process, it was noted that it is against school policy  for students to directly handle heir letters of recommendation.  As a result, these applicants could not upload such letters with their application.  This resulted in a confusing stream of emails  from student references to the ToY chair.  Later, these references would have to be compiled and sent separately to the applicant's local club, then to the division Lt Governor, and finally to the District Committee members.  This creates and undue amount of letters in each mailbox that must then be cross referenced with the missing letters in the corresponding application.  As I already indicated, it creates significant confusion.  Because school policies do not allow a student to upload their own reference letters, the District Committee recommends exploring the possibility of allowing referees to directly upload their letters on their student's application.  

		Signature: Rocco C. Cipriano  (April 27, 2023)








Report of the Executive Director
Capital District, Kiwanis International
May 20, 2023


Capital Membership
2022-2023 Starting # 4089 2021-2022 Loss of Membership = -195
Current Total 4300 (as 5/12/23)
Net Change +211


Total Charters – 163 (3 PR - Capitol Hill, Far East Wash and Williamson)
New Clubs Added: Haymarket-Gainesville, Mathews, Short Pump
New Clubs In Progress: Kiln Creek, Salisbury
New Clubs Upcoming: Lewisburg, Catonsville


Clubs who lost members so far this year: 33 of 163 (+ from 31 in 3/23)
Clubs who gained this year: 72 of 163 (+ from 68 in 3/23)
Clubs who are net 0 so far this year: 58 of 163 (- from 62 in 3/23)
Clubs below 15: 45 of 163 (28%) (Unchanged)
Clubs below 10: 22 of 163 (14%) (New statistic)


Lt. Governor Election Reporting
2023-24 Lt. Governors Elected: 14 of 18
2023-24 Lt. Governors Identified: 1 of 18 (D3 - Election Scheduled for May 17)
2023-24 Lt. Governors Unidentified: 3 of 18 (D1, D4, D16, D19)
2023-24 Lt. Governors-Elect Elected: 6 of 18 (D2, D3, D9, D10, D12, D14)


Lt. Governor Reports
Contact: 19 out of 20 filed - 18 on time (D1 not submitted, D3 submitted late)
Board: 15 out of 20 filed - 12 on time (Not Submitted D1, D3, D7, D10, D14)


23-24 Club Election Reports - Due June 1st
19 Clubs of out 160 Active Submitted as of May 12, 2023


Kiwanis International Convention (as of 5/12/23)
37 attendees (& 1 guest) have registered for ICON representing 25 clubs
30 attendees have registered for the District Dinner (PNW at 40 - min reached)







Clubs Not Current (within 2 months) of Monthly Reporting
(in accordance with Policy Section 2B(c)


52 out of 163 clubs are Not in Good Standing


Division 1:
Far East Washington*
Eastern Branch, Washington*
Northwest Washington
Shepherd Park, Washington
Washington*


Division 2:
Arlington
Bull Run-Manassas*
Manassas
Mount Vernon, Fairfax Cty*
Woodbridge


Division 3:
Montgomery Village
Prince George's County*
Waldorf


Division 4:
NONE


Division 5:
Coastal Delaware
Georgetown*
Seaford


Division 6:
Canton-Fells Point
Hampden Midtown*
Loch Raven*
Reisterstown


Division 7:
NONE


Division 8:
Strasburg


Division 9:
NONE


Division 10:
Central Chesterfield
Hopewell


Division 11:
Tuckahoe, Richmond


Division 12:
Middlesex, Saluda*


Division 13:
City Center, Newport News*
Greater Hilton
Old Point Comfort, Hampton


Division 14:
Churchland, Portsmouth*
Great Bridge-Chesapeake
Norfolk
Portsmouth
Virginia Beach*


Division 15:
Fort Hill, Lynchburg
Roanoke


Division 16:
Bluefield*
Radford*


Division 17:
NONE


Division 18:
Wheeling


Division 19:
Bridgeport*
Clarksburg
Keyser*
Keyser-Breakfast
Morgantown*
Parsons


Division 20:
Beckley
Delbarton
Gilbert
Logan
Hinton*
St. Albans
War
Williamson*


* Clubs that haven’t filed ANY reports this Kiwanis year







Capital District Kiwanis
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position


As of May 12, 2023


Cash Basis  Friday, May 12, 2023 08:29 AM GMT-04:00   1/1


TOTAL


ASSETS


Current Assets


Bank Accounts


1000-010 Kiwanis Checking 72,208.32


1000-011 Kiwanis Reserve 51,451.83


1000-012 Kiwanis Investments 770,154.60


1001-010 Key Club Checking 22,586.65


1001-011 Key Club Investments 160,129.16


1002-010 Circle K Checking 33,347.00


Total Bank Accounts $1,109,877.56


Total Current Assets $1,109,877.56


TOTAL ASSETS $1,109,877.56


LIABILITIES AND EQUITY


Liabilities


Total Liabilities


Equity


3300-001 Unrestricted Net Assets 542,653.46


3300-002 Equity - Key Club 342,888.65


3300-003 Equity - Circle K 61,006.11


Net Revenue 163,329.34


Total Equity $1,109,877.56


TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $1,109,877.56







Capital District Kiwanis
October 2022 - September 2023


Cash Basis  Friday, May 12, 2023 08:30 AM GMT-04:00   1/2


KIWANIS TOTAL


ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET


Revenue


4301 Morgan Stanley Dividends 6,760.81 $6,760.81 $0.00


4302 Morgan Stanley Realized Gains/Losses -18,452.61 $ -18,452.61 $0.00


4303 Morgan Stanley Unrealized Gains/Losses 99,283.72 $99,283.72 $0.00


7000-001 Income - Membership Dues 131,197.14 134,400.00 $131,197.14 $134,400.00


7100-001 Income - Registration & Event Fees 33,516.09 $33,516.09 $0.00


7150-001 Income - Fundraising 590.00 $590.00 $0.00


7200-002 Income - Advertising/Sponsorship 1,823.85 $1,823.85 $0.00


7400-001 Income - Grants 4,340.00 $4,340.00 $0.00


7500-001 Income - Interest 2,775.83 $2,775.83 $0.00


Total Revenue $261,834.83 $134,400.00 $261,834.83 $134,400.00


GROSS PROFIT $261,834.83 $134,400.00 $261,834.83 $134,400.00


Expenditures


8025-001 Scholarships/Awards 4,000.00 $0.00 $4,000.00


8030-001 Background Checks 325.00 1,000.00 $325.00 $1,000.00


8050-001 Investment Fees 4,378.58 $4,378.58 $0.00


8100-001 Committee - Achievement 1,641.64 1,500.00 $1,641.64 $1,500.00


8100-002 Committee - Aktion Club 560.00 $0.00 $560.00


8100-005 Committee - Circle K International 1,738.84 4,635.00 $1,738.84 $4,635.00


8100-009 Committee - Finance 375.00 $0.00 $375.00


8100-010 Committee - Key Club International 400.00 2,400.00 $400.00 $2,400.00


8100-012 Committee - K-Family 12,000.00 $0.00 $12,000.00


8100-014 Committee - Kiwanis Kids 73.28 700.00 $73.28 $700.00


8100-015 Committee - Leadership & Education 2,300.00 $0.00 $2,300.00


8100-018 Committee - Membership 3,225.59 12,000.00 $3,225.59 $12,000.00


8100-020 Committee - Partnership Coordinator 150.00 $0.00 $150.00


8100-023 Committee - Public Relations 240.00 $0.00 $240.00


8100-027 Committee - Youth Protection Manager 1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00


8100-030 Committee - Diversity, Equity & Inclusion 200.00 550.00 $200.00 $550.00


8160-001 Entertainment & A/V 4,243.86 $4,243.86 $0.00


8160-005 Advertising 200.00 $200.00 $0.00


8250-001 Insurance - D&O 800.00 800.00 $800.00 $800.00


8410-001 Meals 19,215.06 2,000.00 $19,215.06 $2,000.00


8430-001 Kiwanis Children's Fund Donations 24,000.00 $24,000.00 $0.00


8430-002 Other Charity Dontions 590.00 $590.00 $0.00


8445-001 Office Supplies 14.83 240.00 $14.83 $240.00


8500-001 Officer Exp - Governor 2,843.69 5,700.00 $2,843.69 $5,700.00


8500-005 Officer Exp - Governor Elect 482.85 4,000.00 $482.85 $4,000.00


8500-010 Officer Exp - Executive Director 448.40 4,000.00 $448.40 $4,000.00


8500-025 Officer Exp - Immediate Past Governor 390.19 3,000.00 $390.19 $3,000.00


8500-030 Officer Exp - Regional Trustees 3,681.72 12,500.00 $3,681.72 $12,500.00


8500-035 Officer Exp - Lt. Governors 3,601.88 12,500.00 $3,601.88 $12,500.00


8500-040 Officer Exp - Lt. Gov-Designate 15,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00


8500-060 8500-060 International Officer Candidate 1,791.74 5,000.00 $1,791.74 $5,000.00


8600-001 Pins / Badges / Shirts 823.32 3,500.00 $823.32 $3,500.00


8610-001 Postage & Shipping 79.30 100.00 $79.30 $100.00


8650-001 Salary - Executive Director 27,721.05 40,800.00 $27,721.05 $40,800.00


8650-002 Salary - Publication Editor 3,000.00 6,000.00 $3,000.00 $6,000.00


8650-003 Salary - Publication Designer 3,000.00 6,000.00 $3,000.00 $6,000.00


8720-001 Professional Services 5,013.97 5,000.00 $5,013.97 $5,000.00


8760-001 Registration Fees & Materials 3,632.69 2,000.00 $3,632.69 $2,000.00


8780-001 Speakers Fees 1,000.00 $1,000.00 $0.00







Capital District Kiwanis
October 2022 - September 2023


Cash Basis  Friday, May 12, 2023 08:30 AM GMT-04:00   2/2


KIWANIS TOTAL


ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET


8830-001 Telephone / Internet 800.00 1,200.00 $800.00 $1,200.00


8850-001 District Publication Expenses 228.00 400.00 $228.00 $400.00


8900-050 Travel - Hotels/Lodging 5,335.84 6,000.00 $5,335.84 $6,000.00


8960-001 Website / IT / Software 1,466.93 2,000.00 $1,466.93 $2,000.00


Total Expenditures $126,388.25 $181,150.00 $126,388.25 $181,150.00


NET OPERATING REVENUE $135,446.58 $ -46,750.00 $135,446.58 $ -46,750.00


NET REVENUE $135,446.58 $ -46,750.00 $135,446.58 $ -46,750.00








2022-2023 Board of Trustees Meeting 
March 3, 2023 at 10:00am ET 
Hyatt Regency Crystal City - Arlington, VA 
Official Minutes 
 


Governor Wolff called the meeting to order at 10:00am.   
 


Attendees: Governor Jen Wolff, Governor-Elect Eric Lamb, Executive Director 
Jeffrey Wolff, Immediate Past Governor Elana Gardner  
Trustees: Roger Diehl, Richard Pippin, Josh Hiscock, Tim Gillette, Jamie Moore, 
Bob Lewit and Nathanial Kyle 
Guests:   PG Don Dudey, Lt Governor-Elect Andy Haag, PLG Hiawatha 
Nicely, Lt. Governor Missy Zimmerman, PG Scott Zimmerman, PG Brian Bell, KI 
Trustee Michael Mulhaul, PG John Tyner II, PG David Lurie, PLG Wes Brown, Lt. 
Governor Mary Kay Olashuk, KI Area Director Rhonda Vrell 
 


Approval of Agenda & Past Minutes  
  


With all board members in attendance, Governor Wolff announced that the board had a quorum 
to conduct business.    
 


● Motion made by Past Governor Gardner to approve the agenda amended to add 
committee reports.  Motion passed unanimously. 


● Motion made by Governor-Elect Lamb to approve the minutes of the November 19, 2022 
Board of Trustees Meeting. Motion passed unanimously. 


● Motion made by Past Governor Gardner to approve the minutes of the January 28,  
2023 Special Board of Trustees Meeting. Motion passed unanimously. 


 
 Agenda Point: Finance - B&P Clubs in Good Standing 


● Motion made by B&P Committee to update policy code 2B(c) to remove references to 
outdated KI procedures.   Motion passed unanimously. 


 
 Agenda Point: Finance - LTG Requirements  


● Committee Recommended no change.   
 
 Agenda Point: Meetings - 2023 Leadership Team Training Conference  


● Motion made by Past Governor Gardner to approve the contract for the 2023 LTEC to 
take place at the Hyatt Place Richmond - Arboretum from June 2-4, 2023.  Motion 
passed unanimously. 


 
 Agenda Point: Meetings - 2024 Capital District Midyear Confernece 


● Motion made by Trustee Pippin to approve the contract for the 2024 Midyear Conference  
to take place at The Resort at Glade Springs in Daniels, WV  from March 8-10, 2024.  
Motion passed unanimously. 







 Agenda Point: Finance - Redivisioning Task Force   
● Motion made by Trustee Moore to approve the recommendation of the task force.  


○ Divisions 1, 2 & 3 remain unchanged as National Capital Region 
○ Divisions 4 & 8 become a new region to be named via contest.  
○ Divisions 5 & 6 become a new region to be named via contest. 
○ Divisions 9 & 10 become the Heart of Virginia Region.  
○ Divisions 12, 13 & 14 remain unchanged as Southeast Virginia Region 
○ Divisions 15, 16 & 17 remain unchanged as Southwest Virginia Region 
○ Divisions 18, 19 & 20 remain unchanged as West Virginia Region 


 Motion passed.  Trustee Moore abstained. 
● Governor Wolff directed the Task Force as its final act to administer the naming contest 


for 4/8 and 5/6 and report naming recommendations to the District Office by April 29th in 
time for a ratification by the Board of Trustees at its May 2023 meeting.  


● Governor Wolff directed the Long Range Planning committee to develop a 
standardization for the size of Capital District Kiwanis Region so it can be codified in 
policy.  


● Motion made by Trustee Hiscock to permit Trustee Roger Diehl to finish the remainder of 
his three-year term ending September 30, 2025  on the Board of Trustees representing 
the new Div 4/8 region to be named later. Motion passed unanimously. 


● Motion made by Trustee Gillette to permit Trustee Jamie Moore to finish the remainder 
of his three-year term ending September 30, 2025 on the Board of Trustees representing 
the revised Heart of Virginia Region. Motion passed unanimously. 


● Executive Director Wolff will facilitate an online election after the Midyear Conference for 
Divisions 5 & 6 to elect their Trustee to a three-year term starting October 1, 2023.  


 
Executive Director’s Report was presented as published in the Board Book 
Trustee Reports were presented.  
 


● Motion made by Trustee Hiscock to accept the resignation of Division 14 Angela 
Hollingsworth that arrived via e-mail during the board meeting. Motion passed 
unanimously. 


 
Committee Board Reports were reviewed 
Governor Wolff adjourned the meeting at 12:00 pm.    
 
The next meeting of the 2022-2023 Capital District Kiwanis Board of Trustees will take place 
online via Zoom at 9am on May 20, 2023.  
 
Respectfully submitted,  


 
PG Jeffrey M. Wolff,  Executive Director 








 


CAPITAL DISTRICT KIWANIS INTERNATIONAL 
Trustee Board Report 


 
 


Region:   Chesapeake Bay Date:     May 2023 
 


 


To be submitted to the District Secretary-Treasurer no later than 21 days before each quarterly District Board 
Meeting. For each division in your region, comment on the areas below. 


 


1. MEMBERSHIP 
 


Thus far in 2022-2023, we have seen net growth in Division 4 (+4) and Division 5 (+30). In Division 4, three 
clubs have grown this year (+3: Crofton, +1: Next Generation e-Club, +1: Severna Park), one club has 
decreased in membership (-1: Ellicott City), and one club remains unchanged (Commodore Mayo). In Division 
5, six clubs have grown (+1: Accomack; +8: Bridgeville; +10: Chincoteague, +5: Coastal Delaware, +2: Greater 
Millsboro, +5: Seaford). One club has decreased in membership (-1 Greater Ocean Pines). The other clubs 
remain unchanged (Delmar, Georgetown, Pocomoke City). Our region wants to end the year with every club 
experiencing net growth. We are on track to accomplish this.  
  
As shared in past regional reports, the Kiwanis Club of Severna Park has voted to turn in its charter sometime 
during the 2022-2023 Kiwanis year. There was some uncertainty if this would really occur. It appears that this 
will happen; the club intends to spend down its funds by choosing community projects to make long-term 
investments in. This is sad news since there are four Key Clubs (Severna Park, Chesapeake, Annapolis, Old 
Mill) that will become non-sponsored when this club dissolves. Division 4 Kiwanis Lt. Governor Michelle Yuth 
is trying to work with the club to see what can be done about this. We have also placed a focus on retaining as 
many members as possible in Kiwanis, there is still much uncertainty if we will lose the remaining Kiwanians to 
other organizations. With the recent re-divisoning and regional realignment, Division 4 will now include the 
Kiwanis Clubs of Westminster, Frederick, and Mt. Airy. These new clubs have been invited to the upcoming 
Division 4 DCM in May and the Division 4 Picnic and CLE Sessions in June.  


 
2. PLANS FOR NEW KIWANIS OR SLP CLUBS 


 
Club Status 


Division 4: Catonsvile Build Planned for 
Summer 2023 


Division 5: Salisbury 
 


Build Planned for 
Spring 2023 


New Key Clubs: Chesapeake Math & IT Academy (Division 4B – Sponsor: Next Generation e-Club) Chartering 
Processing 







3. CHALLENGES OR ASSISTANCE NEEDED 
 


I feel like a broken record in each report, but our greatest challenge remains the same – Lt. Governor 
succession. Really, the root issue is club officer succession. The same individuals continue to lead their clubs 
year after year and there is no space, energy, or desire for people to step forward and do more. The argument is: 
Kiwanis is a local organization, and the need is greatest in the individual community. There appears to be a 
deference of responsibility; this is to say, leadership is someone else’s problem and someone else, somewhere 
else, needs to step up.  
 
For another year, the leadership pipeline for future Lt. Governors continues to be a concern in the dissolving 
Chesapeake Bay Region. As of the writing of this report, Division 4 has not found a Lt. Governor-Elect to serve 
the Capital District in 2023-2024. We are growing the leadership pipeline in Division 4 with some new leaders 
stepping into club roles this Kiwanis year. Our Capital – Next Generation e-Club has several eager young 
leaders who want to fill roles at the district level. A few other clubs, namely Crofton and Commodore Mayo, 
consistently add new members and have begun to engage more in DCMs and other divisional events. The three 
newly added clubs (Westminster, Mt. Airy, Frederick) may provide additional eligible candidates to run for Lt. 
Governor. However, thus far, it does not appear that any members from those clubs wish to run for the position.  
 
Within Division 5 we are seeing membership grow in many clubs, which is promising that in the long term, 
some clubs may have candidates for the Lt. Governor role. This is a primary and urgent focus. However, filling 
the position was a struggle in 2022-2023, and it appears that challenges may still persist moving forward. Jack 
Hassman has agreed to serve another term to help transition Division 5 to its new region with Division 6.  


 
I do not have any immediate questions. There is no need for immediate assistance. 


 
4. OTHER COMMENTS 


SIGNED:       
 
 


 








CAPITAL DISTRICT KIWANIS INTERNATIONAL
Trustee Board Report	  


Region:	   Date:	  	  


To be submitted to the District Secretary-Treasurer no later than 21 days before each quarterly District Board 
Meeting.  For each division in your region, comment on the areas below.


2. PLANS FOR NEW KIWANIS OR SLP CLUBS


Club Status


1. MEMBERSHIP 







August 4, 2020


3. CHALLENGES OR ASSISTANCE NEEDED


4. OTHER COMMENTS


SIGNED:	  ____________________________________________________________________________________________________________	  





		GOALRow1: Short Pump (OPEN WITH 21 NEW MEMBERS)

		 CompleteRow1: 

		GOALRow2: Colonial Heights Night club( it is not going to be a new club but just a satellite of the lunch club)

		 CompleteRow2: +4

		GOALRow3: 

		 CompleteRow3: 

		GOALRow4: 

		 CompleteRow4: 

		GOALRow5: 

		 CompleteRow5: 

		CommitteeName: Heart of Virginia 

		Date: 05/01/2023

		MembershipNotes: For the year Division 9 is up 7, Division 10 is up 7 Division 11 is up 29 (21 new members with Short Pump)So far for the year the HOV is up 43 members

		Challenges: Div 9: NoneDiv 10: Crewe is done to 5 members, Central chesterfield is voting to close and join Chester if the switch to a lunch club (They vote on May 15)Div 11: None

		Comments: All elections for LTG have been done for division 9 and 10 for next year.  I have three amazing LTG's this year that are keeping things in the HOV running smooth.  

		Signature: Jamie Moore








CAPITAL DISTRICT KIWANIS INTERNATIONAL
Trustee Board Report	  


Region:	   Date:	  	  


To be submitted to the District Secretary-Treasurer no later than 21 days before each quarterly District Board 
Meeting.  For each division in your region, comment on the areas below.


2. PLANS FOR NEW KIWANIS OR SLP CLUBS


Club Status


1. MEMBERSHIP 







August 4, 2020


3. CHALLENGES OR ASSISTANCE NEEDED


4. OTHER COMMENTS


SIGNED:	  ____________________________________________________________________________________________________________	  





		GOALRow1: Frederick club was considering building two New Clubs. Nothing as of yet.

		 CompleteRow1: 

		GOALRow2: 

		 CompleteRow2: 

		GOALRow3: 

		 CompleteRow3: 

		GOALRow4: 

		 CompleteRow4: 

		GOALRow5: 

		 CompleteRow5: 

		CommitteeName: Mason Dixon

		Date: 5-20-2023

		MembershipNotes: Division 6 Net Gain of 1Division 7 Net Loss of 3.  Frederick had largest lossDivision 8 Net gain of 12  Total gain 10 for the year

		Challenges: Division 6 is now moving and looking to continue its growth and service.Division 7 is finally having a DCM next month. (First one in two years.)  Division 8 had it's 2 DCM and has already scheduled CLE for June.

		Comments: Division 6... I would like to see Capital District help these small and aging clubs recruit and sustain younger members. Perhaps organize a day for Blitz.DCM scheduled for June 7th.  expect Division 7 to revive it's DCMs with in person attendance.Division 8 continues to run exceptionally well thanks to Seth!

		Signature: Roger A. Diehl








CAPITAL DISTRICT KIWANIS INTERNATIONAL
Trustee Board Report	  


Region:	   Date:	  	  


To be submitted to the District Secretary-Treasurer no later than 21 days before each quarterly District Board 
Meeting.  For each division in your region, comment on the areas below.


2. PLANS FOR NEW KIWANIS OR SLP CLUBS


Club Status


1. MEMBERSHIP 


National Capital 04/29/2023


D1 - Total 169. FY23 Change +11. Below Charter: Capitol Hill, NW Washington, SW Waterfront
D2 - Total 260. FY23 Change +6. Below Charter: None
D3 - Total 137. FY23 Change +4. Below Charter: Greater Landover, Montgomery Village, Waldorf.


Haymarket-Gainesville - Active







August 4, 2020


3. CHALLENGES OR ASSISTANCE NEEDED


4. OTHER COMMENTS


SIGNED:	  ____________________________________________________________________________________________________________	  


Division 1 - Two clubs are currently chartered suspended (Capitol Hill & Far East Washington) for 
non-payment of dues. Tough to get information from the Lt. Governor, she has not responded to any 
requests for report input. I do not believe a DCM has been held. 


Division 2 - Trying to get the Bull Run club to participate in Division events. Working with the Mt. 
Vernon club to get them up to speed. 


Division 3 - One club is currently chartered suspended (PG County) for non-payment of dues. There 
have been multiple attempts to contact the club, but no response. 


Division 1 - no response from Lt. Governor. 


Division 2 -  Division has elected Lt. Governor Designate (Kim Thompson, Leesburg) & Lt. Governor 
Elect (Rob Dodd, Fredericksburg). The Haymarket-Gainesville club will hold a charter ceremony on 
June 8th. Division has been having regular DCMs in person & hybrid.


Division 3 - Division has a  candidate for Lt. Governor Designate (Wayne Quick, Mitchellville). and 
(Steve Cohen, Leisure World) for Lt. Governor elect, and will have a meeting on May 10th to elect. 
Division has been having regular DCMs via zoom, and held their first hybrid DCM with many 
members attending in person. 


Trustee Comments - At the Mid-Year Conference, the National Capital Region had an election to 
elect a Trustee for 2023-2026. Marie Quick from Mitchellville was elected at this meeting, and her 
term will begin on October 1, 2023.


Tim Gillette, NCR Trustee








CAPITAL DISTRICT KIWANIS INTERNATIONAL
Trustee Board Report	  


Region:	   Date:	  	  


To be submitted to the District Secretary-Treasurer no later than 21 days before each quarterly District Board 
Meeting.  For each division in your region, comment on the areas below.


2. PLANS FOR NEW KIWANIS OR SLP CLUBS


Club Status


1. MEMBERSHIP 







August 4, 2020


3. CHALLENGES OR ASSISTANCE NEEDED


4. OTHER COMMENTS


SIGNED:	  ____________________________________________________________________________________________________________	  





		GOALRow1: Division 12:  Our new club, Matthews is up  and running with 16 members.  Tfhey go before their School Board in May to pitch bringing SLP's back to elementary, middle and high schools this fall.  Toano has started a new Builders Club. 

		 CompleteRow1: 

		GOALRow2: Division 13:  Work continues on building the Kiln Creek Club. Next meeting scheduled for May 3rd.  Goal is to have 15 new members at that meeting. 

		 CompleteRow2: 

		GOALRow3: Division 14:  No Report

		 CompleteRow3: 

		GOALRow4: 

		 CompleteRow4: 

		GOALRow5: 

		 CompleteRow5: 

		CommitteeName: Southeast Virginia Region

		Date: 04/29/2023

		MembershipNotes: As of April 29, 2023 the Southeast Region is +33 in net growth directly as a result of Division 12 (+33).  Division 13 is at -2 and 14 +2.  The regions total stands at 887 members with 27 clubs.  The region gained one club (Matthews in Division 12) since the last report. There are 8 clubs under 15 members 

		Challenges: Division 12:  New Kent is virtually non-existent although they look good on paper (MRF's and Election Reports filed, one person at DCM, etc.  There are no regular meetings.  Need to keep this on the radar for  a boost, but it won't be a quick in and out for this area where a lot of the people who live there work outside of New Kent. Middlesex has not filed an MRF since July, 2023.  II discussed this with their Board in March and received promises they would catch up, but i'm not seeing anything yet.  Gloucester is feeling frustrated that their recruiting efforts have not been fruitful.  Perhaps a club coachcould get them on track with  some more potentially productive approaches. Division 13:  Division continues to  work on membership for existing clubs.  All clubs desiring to have a membership drive have been requested to schedule a date with the LTG. We will complete as many drives as requested by Clubs. Division 14:  Great Bridge Club has lost two key members in recent months with membership down to 10.  However, only about 6 really active.  They have reached out to the division for assistance with projects.  The Chesapeake club is helping with one of their events. Trustee Pippin has been assigned as their club coach.  

		Comments: Division 12:  LTG and LTG Elect were elected and reported for 2023-2024.  Division TOY scholarship awarded and nominee Bryce McHose of Washington Academy sentto  District level. 

Division 13:  Norah Napier was selected as the TOY.  Norah is a senior at Isle of Wight Academy.  Her application was forwarded to the District. 

Division 14:  The Southeast Region fishing clinic, headed up by Wesley  Brown, is gearing up for the  event on July 18th. There is participation from  all  three divisions. The event will be at the Washington fishing pier at Buckroe Beach. 



		Signature: Richard Pippin, Trustee








CAPITAL DISTRICT KIWANIS INTERNATIONAL
Trustee Board Report	  


Region:	   Date:	  	  


To be submitted to the District Secretary-Treasurer no later than 21 days before each quarterly District Board 
Meeting.  For each division in your region, comment on the areas below.


2. PLANS FOR NEW KIWANIS OR SLP CLUBS


Club Status


1. MEMBERSHIP 







August 4, 2020


3. CHALLENGES OR ASSISTANCE NEEDED


4. OTHER COMMENTS


SIGNED:	  ____________________________________________________________________________________________________________	  





		GOALRow1: New Key Club at CHS continues to be active and doing well

		 CompleteRow1: 

		GOALRow2: 

		 CompleteRow2: 

		GOALRow3: 

		 CompleteRow3: 

		GOALRow4: 

		 CompleteRow4: 

		GOALRow5: 

		 CompleteRow5: 

		CommitteeName: SW Region

		Date: 04/26/2023

		MembershipNotes: The following data is from dashboard dated 18 Apr 2023Div 15:  LtG April Farmer; 398 members, net increase of 9, Martinsville -5Div 16:  LtG Steve Simmons; 216 members, net increase 13, Abingdon/Marion/Wythe Co all -2 eaDiv 17:  LtG Jon Rife: 223 members, net increase 16, Norton -4

		Challenges: Div 15:   Lack of real initiatives on membership throughout division; lack of females and minorities.  Plan is to offer to help clubs create a plan targeting women including conducting community outreach. Div 16:  Radford remains the biggest concern.  Will continue working with president Jim to see if they are interested in help.  They attended the Regional Conference which was a big surprise.  One civic club in Radford is about to shut down, working to get recruit them.  Bluefield paid dues with a check which caused posting delays.  KI shut them down until it posted and they got out of sync reporting-will try to catch up.  Not accustomed to get in since locked out. Div 17:  Coburn is the weakest club.  Their 100th anniversary is in May.  Trying to get them energized for anniversary.  Planning to conduct a DCM around their anniversary and get them energized to celebrate the milestone.  They have plenty of funds, and continue to do good work.  Planning for CLE in July.

		Comments: The SW Regional Conference was by all accounts, a huge success with 63 Kiwanians in attendance.  All expenses were completely covered by registration fees.  All three divisions conducted a DCM and held LtG elections for 2023-2024 FY.  The presence and support by CD Leadership was greatly appreciated and lent an air of significance to the attendees.  Two clubs (Beckley and Mercer Co) of the 5 WVa clubs transitioning to Div 16 attended the conference; Welch sent a proxy vote for the Div 16 LtG election.  Many thought their time was well spent, and are hoping for another conference next year.   My personal thanks goes out to my team of Steve Simmons, Jon Rife, April Farmer, Jeannette Ogilvie and John Montgomery for putting up with all of my emails, text messages, phone calls and Zoom meetings as we planned for this successful conference which exceeded all expectations.

		Signature: 








CAPITAL DISTRICT KIWANIS INTERNATIONAL
Trustee Board Report


Region: West Virginia Date: April 27, 2023


To be submitted to the District Secretary-Treasurer no later than 21 days before each quarterly
District Board Meeting. For each division in your region, comment on the areas below.


1. MEMBERSHIP-


Division 18- 110 One club under charter strength (N. Parkersburg), and one club at charter
strength (Williamstown Area)


Division 19- 144 Five clubs under charter strength (Bridgeport, Fairmont, Keyser-Breakfast,
Morgantown, and Parsons). Elkins +18 for a total of 44 members.


Division 20- 213 Seven clubs under charter strength (Delbarton, Gilbert, Greater Nitro Area,
Hinton, Mercer County, St. Albans, and War). Delbarton, East Huntington, Gilbert, Huntington,
Logan, St. Albans and War have all added at least one new member. Only division with new
members added.


2. PLANS FOR NEW KIWANIS OR SLP CLUBS
Club Status


Marshall University CKI N/A







3. CHALLENGES OR ASSISTANCE NEEDED


Challenges- Still having DCM attendance issues. Will be working with 23-24 LTG’s on ways to
encourage attendance. And just re-energizing the WV region in general.


4. OTHER COMMENTS- Still no contact with Williamson who is CS as of now. Still losing
Keyser-Breakfast at the end of the year.


SIGNED:Nathaniel Kyle








Capital District, Kiwanis International
2022-2023 Board of Trustees Meeting
Saturday, May 20, 2023 - 9:00am
Zoom Online Meeting


1. Welcome
2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. Recognition of Guests
4. Declaration of Quorum
5. Approval of Agenda
6. Approval of Minutes


a. March 3, 2023 - Board of Trustees Meeting
7. Matters for Approval and/or Discussion


a. Agenda Point - B&P - Active Campaigning Policy
b. Agenda Point - B&P - District Bylaws Update
c. Agenda Point - Task Force - Region Naming
d. Agenda Point - Executive - Resignation of Division 1 Lt. Governor
e. Agenda Point - Executive - Appointment of 22-23 Division 1 Lt. Governor


8. Board Reports
a. Executive Directors Report


i. Club Membership Totals / Charters In Danger
ii. Lt. Governor Elections / Reports
iii. Club Election Reporting
iv. Club Monthly Reports
v. District Financial Standing


b. Regional Trustee Reports
c. Committee/Key Staff Reports


9. Other Business
10. Adjournment








Capital District, Kiwanis International  


May 2023 Board of Trustees Meeting 


Agenda Point – Active Campaigning Policy Code 
Clarification   
 


 


Background 
Executive Director Wolff requested that the committee review Section 7C (d) of the District 
Policy Code for some inconsistent references defining what constitutes active campaigning. The 
Bylaws and Policy Committee reviewed the request and upon examination of the Policy Code 


discovered that this is an area where the rules potentially contradict themselves when 
looking at the time prior to active campaigning. Current policy states that "Active 
Campaigning" is not permitted until after a candidacy for District Office is 
officially announced in January.  
 
From our policy statements, Section 7C(d)(ii) states:  
 
Active campaigning consists of the following:  
1. Distribution of campaign materials, including but not limited to brochures, posters, signs, 
electronic communication, tangible objects, or documents with the candidate’s name, 
picture, qualifications, campaign logo, and/or theme;  
2. Solicitation of votes, commitments, support, and/or endorsement of individuals (other 
than from the candidate’s own club or division and other than those serving on the 
campaign committee); and  
3. Speaking at club, divisional, or regional functions (other than the candidate’s own 
club, division, or region) to gain exposure as a candidate. 
 
However, under "Campaign Activities Prior to Active Campaigning", Section 7C(d)(iii)(2) 
allows for:  
 
Appear at regional or District meetings, by invitation from the regional Trustee and/or 
Lieutenant Governors for the purpose of introducing and announcing their candidacy 
and to become acquainted with the region or division. 
 
"Regional or District Meetings" is typically a reference in our policies to the old Midyear 
events (which used to take place as early as January or February).  
 
This could potentially be interpreted as active campaigning prior to the official announcement of 


candidacy as there has been confusion in the past on this topic.  


  


RECOMMENDATION 


The committee recommends that the Board of Trustees remove Section 7C(d)(iii)(2) and 


renumber the remaining subsections as needed. This would remove any potential confusion 


in campaigning prior to the official announcement of candidacy. This has no impact on a 


candidate obtaining support from their home club or division prior to their official 


announcement of candidacy, which is an allowed exception under Section 7C(d)(ii).  


 







Operational Impact  
If approved by the Board, the Executive Director will modify and publish a revised policy code.  
 
Financial Impact 


N/A 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 


David Lurie  


Chair, Bylaws and Policy Committee 


Capital District Kiwanis 


 


 








Capital District, Kiwanis International  


May 2023 Board of Trustees Meeting 


Agenda Point – District Bylaws Revision   
 


 


Background 


The Kiwanis International Board approved in January 2023 a new standard form of District 
Bylaws and requested that all districts adopt these changes as soon as practicable.  This 
standard form replaces the last version issued in 2014 and makes a number of changes.   


The most significant change is a result of the Kiwanis International Board recently asking the 
Governance Committee to address an issue in the Standard Form for District Bylaws that has 
sometimes caused confusion and concern among districts: the matter of nominations from the 
floor for governor-elect and governor. This has been resolved by providing that the governor-
elect will be the sole candidate for governor (and, if the district has a vice-governor, that person 
will be the sole candidate for governor-elect). Nominations from the floor are only proper if the 
sole candidate was not previously elected by the district house of delegates (such as when an 
officer had died or resigned and the vacancy was filled by the district board) or if the sole 
candidate is no longer qualified to hold office. 


The Standard Form was also updated to incorporate changes in operations since the last 
version was issued in 2014. 


• Added the fact that Lt. Governors may now come from outside the division they lead (Article 3) 


• Removed references to Governors as officers of Kiwanis International (Article 3) 


• Added the fact that districts must also appoint not just district chairs but also ‘key positions’ 
and SLP Administrators (Article 5)  


• Reduced the quorum for district Trustee elections and Lt. Governor elections from majority to 
1/3 of the clubs in the region or division. (Article 7) 


• Adjusted the language regarding sole candidates for Lt. Governor versus nominations from the 
floor. (The matter is irrelevant for district Trustees since districts do not have Trustees-elect.) 
(Article 7) 


• Made the change to prorated dues for districts whose dues are billed and collected by K.I.  (An 
option for non-proration is still permitted for districts outside of North America.) (Article 10) 


• Added the option for districts to waive dues for two years for SLP alumni (Article 10) 


• Emphasized the definition of “club” (meaning club in good standing) and “member” (meaning 
member in good standing), per the existing language in Article I. (Throughout) 


•  Made minor language updates with no change in meaning. (Throughout) 







•  Changed the article numbering from Roman numerals (II, III, IV) to Arabic numerals (2, 3, 4) 


 
 


A note about the new asterisks.  Article 1 – Definitions already stated: 


 


Section 1.  Wherever these terms appear throughout these bylaws, "club" means a club in good 
standing as defined from time to time by Kiwanis International and "active member" means a 
member in good standing with his/her club. However, provisions regarding sending notice to 
clubs about meetings, amendments, and resolutions and provisions regarding payment of club 
financial obligations shall apply to all chartered clubs, whether in good standing or not in good 
standing. 


 


However, it has become evident that many districts are forgetting these definitions when they 
read and apply other bylaw provisions. To try to make districts more aware that these definitions 
apply throughout the bylaws, asterisks have been added which directly tie all applicable 
references to “club” and “active member” back to Article I. (All words that need to have asterisks 
added are shown in the document. 
 
The committee reviewed the language provided by Kiwanis International and prepared a 
revision to incorporate the required language into the District Bylaws.   
 


RECOMMENDATION 
Committee recommends that the Board of Trustees adopts the District Bylaws revision as 


attached. The Standard Form for District Bylaws is designed to reflect the basic requirements 


Kiwanis International has for Kiwanis district operations. Therefore, when changes are made to 


the Standard Form, districts must adopt them. Districts may not reject those changes.    


 


Additions are in red and bolded and deletions are struck through the document.  


 


Article 13, Section 3 of our current district laws already provides the authority fo the district 


board to adopt these changes required by Kiwanis International without submitting them to the 


House of Delegates for approval.  Kiwanis International requested that we submit these 


changes at our next regularly scheduled meeting today.   


 
Operational Impact  
If approved by the Board, the Executive Director will modify and publish a revised district bylaws 
after receiving approval from Kiwanis International.    
 
Financial Impact 


N/A 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 


David Lurie  


Chair, Bylaws and Policy Committee 


Capital District Kiwanis 







Capital District Bylaws – Last Amended May 19, 2023, 
Page 1 


 


 
 


 


 


Section 1. Wherever these terms appear throughout these bylaws, "club" means a club in good standing 
as defined from time to time by Kiwanis International and "active member" means a member in good 
standing with his/her club as defined by the club. However, provisions regarding sending notice to clubs 
about meetings, amendments, and resolutions and provisions regarding payment of club financial 
obligations shall apply to all chartered clubs, whether in good standing or not in good standing. 


 
 


 


Section 1. The name of this organization shall be the Capital District of Kiwanis International. 
 


Section 2. The boundaries territorial limits of this district shall be confined to Delaware; Maryland; the 
District of Columbia; West Virginia and Virginia, except the entire County of Lee, Virginia, and that 
portion of Wise County, Virginia, that composes the area of the Big Stone Gap, Virginia Kiwanis Club, 
as determined by the Kiwanis International Board. Neither the district name nor territorial limits shall 
be changed unless permission shall first have been obtained from the Kiwanis International Board of 
Trustees. 


 
Section 3. Neither the district name nor boundaries shall be changed unless permissions shall first have 
been obtained from the Kiwanis International Board.  
 
Section 43. The purpose of this district shall be primarily to help Kiwanis clubs and Kiwanis 
International advance the Objects, objectives, policies and strategic goals of Kiwanis, and specifically to 
cooperate with Kiwanis International in: 
● Building new clubs and strengthening existing clubs; 
● Delivering education to clubs; and 
● Delivering service leadership programs and global campaign for children programming to and 


through clubs. 
 


The purpose of the district also shall be to promote the interests of the clubs within the district to 
Kiwanis International. 


 
Section 54. 
The district shall group clubs into divisions and divisions into regions. The boundaries territorial limits 
of the divisions and regions shall be defined by the District Board in district policies. 


 
Section 65. Each club* within the district boundaries is a member of the district and is entitled to all the 


BYLAWS OF THE CAPITAL DISTRICT OF KIWANIS INTERNATIONAL 
 


ADAPTED FROM 


STANDARD FORM FOR DISTRICT BYLAWS 
As revised by the Kiwanis International Board of Trustees 


January 2023 
 
 


ARTICLE 1I. DEFINITIONS 


ARTICLE 2II. PURPOSE AND STRUCTURE 







Capital District Bylaws – Last Amended May 19, 2023, 
Page 2 


 


rights, privileges, and responsibilities thereof. 


 


 
 


Section 1. 
 


a. The officers of the district shall be the Governor, Governor-elect, Vice Governor, Immediate Past 
Governor, Secretary-Treasurer, and a Lieutenant Governor for each division and/or a Trustee for 
each region of the district. 


 
b. No offices other than those of Secretary and Treasurer may be combined in one person.  
 
b.c. The Secretary-Treasurer has the title of Executive Director. 


 
c.d. After their election and before their assumption of office, all officers shall be known and 
designated by the titles of the offices to which they have respectively been elected followed by the 
term "designate." 


 
Section 2. Each district officer shall be an active member** in a club* of the district. 
 


a. Each Lieutenant Governor shall be a member** of a club* in the division from which elected; 
shall have served as a Kiwanis club president; and shall have and maintain a clear criminal 
history background check as provided in district policy. However, if there is no member** from 
a club* in a particular division qualified and willing to serve as lieutenant governor, a 
member** of a club* in another division may serve. 


 
b. Each Trustee shall be a member** of a club* in the region from which elected; shall have 


served as a Lieutenant Governor in this District; and shall have and maintain a clear criminal 
history background check as provided in district policy. 


 
c. Each candidate for tThe office of Governor, Governor-elect and Vice Governor shall have 


and maintain a clear criminal history background check conducted and verified by Kiwanis 
International; shall have been a member of a Kiwanis club in this district for at least six (6) 
years; and shall have completed a term as Lieutenant Governor in this district. 


 
d. The Executive Director shall have been a member of a Kiwanis club in the district for at least six 


(6) years; shall have served one full term as a Lieutenant Governor in this district; and shall 
have and maintain a clear criminal history background check as provided in district policy. 


 
Section 3. Officer terms shall be as follows or until said officer’s successor shall be duly elected and 
qualified. The terms of all district officers shall begin on October 1. 


a.  Each Lieutenant Governor shall serve for a term of one (1) year. 
a.b. Each Trustee shall serve for a term of three (3) years. 
b.c. All other officers shall serve a term of one (1) year, unless otherwise specified. 


 


No person shall serve more than two consecutive terms as a Trustee or Lieutenant Governor. The time 
served by any person appointed by the District Board to fill a vacancy shall not count for the purpose of 
this provision. 


 
Section 4. Each district officer has the duty and responsibility to: 


ARTICLE 3III. OFFICERS 







Capital District Bylaws – Last Amended May 19, 2023, 
Page 3 


 


 


a. Promote the Objects and objectives of Kiwanis International. 
 


b. Promote the interests of the clubs within the district. 
 


c. Perform such duties and responsibilities as are currently prescribed or as may be amended in 
the bylaws, policies, or procedures of Kiwanis International or of the district or as may be assigned 
by the District Board. 


 
d. Actively promote implementation of growth efforts of the district in conjunction with Kiwanis 
International’s strategic growth plan. 


 
e. Actively promote and support programs of emphasis by Kiwanis International, such as the 
service leadership programs (where applicable) and the global campaign for children. 


 
f. Attend all meetings required by the district. 


 
g. Whenever possible, all district officers are encouraged to attend the Kiwanis International 
Convention. 


 
Section 5. The Governor has the further duties and responsibilities: 


 
a. Serve as the chief executive officer of the district, under the direction and supervision of the 
Kiwanis International Board of Trustees. 


 
b. Be responsible for planning and developing the general program for the district convention and 
conferences with the advice and consent of the District Board. 


 
c. Preside at all district conventions and meetings of the District Board. 


 
d. Attend all conventions and other meetings required by Kiwanis International and the district’s 


region. 
 


e. Be responsible for implementing growth efforts of the district in conjunction with Kiwanis 
International’s strategic growth plan. 


 
f. (In districts where applicable) Actively promote the Service Leadership Programs of Kiwanis 
International and assure proper supervision of those programs on a local, divisional, and district 
level. 


 
Section 6. The Governor-elect has the further duties and responsibilities: 


 
a. Attend all meetings required by Kiwanis International and the region for Governors-elect, 
including the Governors-elect Education Conference and the International Convention. 


 
b. Be responsible for the training of incoming Lieutenant Governors, Trustees, and district 
committee chairs; for implementing club education programs; and for education programs at the 
district convention. 


 
c. Support the Governor in his/her role as an officer of Kiwanis International. 


 







Capital District Bylaws – Last Amended May 19, 2023, 
Page 4 


 


Section 7. The Vice-Governor has the further duties and responsibilities to give priority to such training, 
orientation, and other activities that focus on education, leadership, and growth to prepare to later hold 
the offices of Governor-elect and Governor. This should include attending the training of incoming district 
officers. 
 
Section 8. The Immediate Past Governor shall be a resource to the District Governor and District 
Board. 
 
Section 9. The Executive Director has the further duties and responsibilities: 
 


a. Assist the Governor and District Board in conducting the business of the district. 
 


b. Keep all records of the district. 
 


c. Be the executive in charge of the District Office and, subject to the approval of the District 
Board, select the employees (if any). 


 
d. Submit to the proper officers, committees, or persons all communications received from 
Kiwanis International and cooperate with the Governor in forwarding all reports required by 
Kiwanis International. 


 
e. Attend and keep the minutes of the meetings of the District Board and the district conventions. 


 
f. Make a report to the district at its annual convention and such other reports as directed by the 
Governor or the District Board. 


 
g. Keep the financial accounts and records and be responsible for proper internal control 
procedures, including the receipt, deposit, and disbursement of district and sponsored organization 
funds in the manner authorized and prescribed by the District Board. 


 
h. Be a member of the Finance Committee. 


 
i. Regularly review and advise the District Board on the financial condition of the district and its 
financial accounts, records, and books of the district and its service leadership programs (if any). 


 
j. Make available for inspection by the Governor, the District Board, or any authorized parties, the 
financial accounts, records, and books of the district and its service leadership programs (if any). 


 
Section 10. The Lieutenant Governors have the further duties and responsibilities: 
 


a. Provide support and assistance to the clubs in their division. 
 


b. Plan and preside at divisional meetings, under the direction of the District Board. 
 


c. Assist the Governor and the District Board in communicating and implementing the plans and 
goals of the district in their divisions. 


 
d. Report to the Governor about the condition and activities of clubs within their divisions. 


 
e. Visit each club in the division as many times as required by the district.    


 







Capital District Bylaws – Last Amended May 19, 2023, 
Page 5 


 


f. While serving as Lieutenant Governor-elect shall assure training of the incoming club officers. 
 
Section 11. The Trustees have the further duties and responsibilities: 
 


a. Perform the duties as a member of the District Board. 
 


b. Provide support to the Lieutenant Governors in their region. 
 


c. Plan and preside at regional meetings, under the direction of the District Board. 
 


 


 


Section 1. The District Board shall consist of the Governor, Governor-elect, Vice Governor, Immediate 
Past Governor, Executive Director, and a Trustee for each region. The Executive Director shall be 
without vote. 


 
Section 2. The management and control of the affairs of the district not otherwise provided for in 
these bylaws shall be vested in the District Board, subject to the supervision and control of the Kiwanis 
International Board of Trustees. The District Board may adopt policies and/or procedures, provided 
they are not in violation of any applicable laws or any higher governing documents. 


 
Section 3. The District Board shall hold at least two (2) regular meetings during each administrative year, 
one of which shall be held prior to October 31, at such times and places as designated by the Governor. 
If the first meeting is held prior to October 1, any action taken shall become effective on October 1, 
unless a later date is specified. 


 
Section 4. A special meeting of the District Board may be called by the Governor or two-thirds (2/3) of 
the entire Board. 


 
Section 5. Subject to the laws of local jurisdiction, the District Board may meet and conduct business 
by any method that allows all participants to simultaneously communicate with one another or as 
otherwise allowed by law. Participation by such methods constitutes attendance. Normal board 
meeting rules and processes apply unless otherwise determined by the Board. 


 
Section 6. The Executive Director shall notify each member of the District Board and the Executive 
Director of Kiwanis International of the time, place, and date of any regular meeting at least three (3) 
weeks in advance and of any special meeting at least three (3) days in advance. 


 
Section 7. In the absence of the Governor from a meeting, the District Board shall elect one of its 
members to act as presiding officer. 


 
Section 8. A majority of the total members of the District Board constitutes a quorum, and a majority 
vote of those present and voting is required for all business unless otherwise provided in these bylaws. 


 
Section 9. Within thirty (30) days after any District Board meeting, the Executive Director shall provide a 
draft of the meeting minutes or a summary of the actions taken to Kiwanis International, and a copy shall 
be made available to clubs in the district. The district shall provide a copy of the official minutes of each 
board meeting to Kiwanis International within thirty (30) days after approval by the District Board. 


 


ARTICLE 4IV.   DISTRICT BOARD 







Capital District Bylaws – Last Amended May 19, 2023, 
Page 6 


 


 
 


Section 1. The titles, structure, and duties of district standing committees, key positions, and Service 
Leadership Program administrators shall be those defined by the Kiwanis International Board of 
Trustees in policies. 


 
Section 2. Each standing committee shall cooperate with the appropriate committee of Kiwanis 
International. 


 
Section 3. The Governor may create special committees, subject to the approval of the District Board. 


 
Section 4. The Governor shall appoint all committee chairs and members, subject to approval of the 
District Board. 


 
Section 5: The Governor shall be a non-votingn ex-officio member of all standing and special committees 
of the district. 


 
Section 6. All committee members appointed by the Governor shall be subject to removal by the 
Governor. 


 


 


 


Section 1. The annual convention of the district shall be held at such place and date, between March 
15 and September 25, as shall be mutually agreed upon by the District Board and the Kiwanis 
International Board of Trustees, except that no district convention shall be held within the period of 
thirty (30) days prior to, during, or thirty (30) days following the Convention of Kiwanis International or 
its region (if any) unless approved by the Kiwanis International Board. In the event the annual 
convention of Kiwanis International is held within the geographic boundaries of a district, the district 
may hold its convention in conjunction with the Kiwanis International convention; in such cases, 
district functions may not be held during general sessions of the International Convention. 


 
Section 2. Special conventions of the district shall be called by the Governor upon the request of a 
majority of the clubs* or upon the request of three-fourths (3/4) of the members of the District Board. 


 
Section 3. The Executive Director shall notify each club and the Executive Director of Kiwanis 
International at least sixty (60) days prior to the date of the annual convention and at least thirty (30) 
days prior to the date of any special convention or rescheduled annual convention. 


 
Section 4. The District Board shall have full supervision and management of all conventions. 


 
Section 5. For each convention, the Governor shall appoint a Committee on Credentials and a 
Committee on Elections, each to consist of at least three (3) members. All members of the Committee 
on Elections shall be delegates. 


 
Section 6. At any district convention, each club* shall be entitled to seat up to three (3) delegates, two 


of whom should be the club president and president-designate, adesignate and may s well as nominate 
up to three (3) alternates to who may serve if any delegate is absent.  Club delegates and alternates 
shall be active members** of the clubs* they represent. However, the Lieutenant Governor or a past 
Lieutenant Governor may represent any club* in their division not otherwise represented by three 


ARTICLE 5V.  COMMITTEES 


ARTICLE 6VI. CONVENTIONS 







Capital District Bylaws – Last Amended May 19, 2023, 
Page 7 


 


delegates. Delegates shall be elected by each club prior to the convention and certified to the district 
by the club president and secretary. A current or past Lieutenant Governor representing a club may be 
certified by the Credentials Committee or its designee. 


 
Section 7. Official delegates of a newly organized club shall be granted full privileges at district 
conventions after the charter has been approved by the Kiwanis International Board of Trustees, even if 
it has not been formally presented to such club. 


 
Section 8. All officers and past Governors of the district who are active members** of a club* in the 
district shall be delegates-at-large to all district conventions. 


 
Section 9: To be accredited, a delegate must have paid a convention registration fee, iffee if such is 
required. 


 
Section 10. There shall be no voting by proxy or absentee ballot. 


 
Section 11. The District Board may establish registration fees to be paid by persons attending any 
district convention. The proceeds derived from such registration fees shall be expended solely upon 
approval of the District Board. 


 
Section 12. The convention may propose, discuss, and adopt resolutions, and may recommend 
matters or concerns to Kiwanis International. The convention shall also consider and act upon matters 
submitted to it by Kiwanis International. 


 
Section 13. In the absence of the Governor from any convention of the district, the District Board shall 
designate any elected member of the District Board to act as presiding officer. 


 
Section 14. Delegates from at least one-third (1/3) of the district clubs* shall constitute a quorum at 
any district convention, and no less than a majority vote of the delegates presentpresent, and voting is 
required to approve all business unless otherwise provided in these bylaws. 


 
Section 15. Within thirty (30) days after any convention, the Executive Director shall provide a written 
report of the actions taken, approved by the Governor, and shall transmit the report to the Executive 
Director of Kiwanis International. A copy of the report shall be made available to clubs in the district. 


 
Section 16. In the event the District Board shall determine by resolution that there exists a condition 
of emergency that compels cancellation of the annual district convention, the Board shall notify 
Kiwanis International and district clubs immediately and shall determine one of the following methods 
to transact any and all business that was to be transacted at the annual convention, as soon as 
practical. The preference will be to reschedule the convention, if possible, or, alternatively, to call a 
meeting of all persons having the status of delegates-at-large at district conventions, a quorum of 
which shall be a majority. 


 
Section 17. The official program of a convention as approved by the District Board shall be the order of 
the day for all sessions. Changes in the agenda of the House of Delegates may be made from time to 
time by a majority vote of the house. 


 
Section 18. Resolutions 







Capital District Bylaws – Last Amended May 19, 2023, 
Page 8 


 


a. A club*, by majority vote of its active members** or board, may propose resolutions to be 
considered at any convention of the district, provided they are submitted to the Executive Director 
not less than sixty (60) days prior to the date of the convention. Resolutions may also be proposed 
by the District Board. 


 
b. All proposed resolutions shall be referred to the Committee on Resolutions and Bylaws for its 
consideration and recommendation to the District Board. The Committee may modify, combine, 
edit, or not accept any club proposals. The District Board shall have final authority on resolutions 
to be considered at the convention. 


 
c. No later than thirty (30) days prior to the district convention, the Executive Director shall make 
available to each club in the district a copy of all proposed resolutions other than those of 
memoriam and appreciation. 


 
d. No other resolutions shall be considered unless approved for consideration by two-thirds (2/3) 
vote of the District Board and presented no later than the beginning of the House of Delegates. 


 
e. Resolutions may be adopted by a majority of the valid votes cast by the delegates present and 
voting, except those recommended by the Board less than sixty (60) days in advance which shall 
require two-thirds (2/3) vote to adopt. 


 
Section 19. The House of Delegates shall adopt standing rules to conduct business. 


 
 


 


Section 1. The election of officers, except as otherwise provided in these bylaws, shall be held at the 
annual convention. The official program of the convention shall indicate the time and place of the 
elections. 


 
Section 2. The Executive Director who will assume office on October 1 shall be appointed by the 
Governor-designate, subject to the approval of the District Board-designate. 


 
Section 3. The nominating and election procedure for officers to be elected at the annual convention 
shall be as follows: 


 
a. The Governor-elect shall be the sole candidate for the office of Governor and the Vice-Governor 
shall be the sole candidate for the office of Governor-elect.  However, in any year in which the 
Governor-elect or Vice Governor was not previously elected by the district house of delegates or is 
no longer qualified to hold office, other qualified candidates shall be permitted.  


 
b. All qualified candidates for offices to be elected at the annual convention must submit written 
notice of candidacy to the Executive Director no later than the beginning of the first convention 
session.  This deadline may be extended by the district board if candidates other than the sole 
candidate(s) are necessary. 


 
c. Qualified candidates for Governor, Governor-elect and Vice Governor shall: 
● Submit a signed agreement provided by to Kiwanis International to fulfill the duties of office. 
● Have a clear criminal history background check conducted and verified by Kiwanis 


ARTICLE 7VII. NOMINATION AND ELECTION OF OFFICERS 







Capital District Bylaws – Last Amended May 19, 2023, 
Page 9 


 


International. 
 


d. Prior to elections, the Executive Director shall report the qualified candidates to the House of 
Delegates. 
 


e. Nothing in this article shall be construed as limiting the right to make further nominations of 
qualified candidates during the House of Delegates session. 


 
f.e. A majority of all valid votes cast shall be necessary for each office elected at the 
convention. In the event that no nominee receives a majority of valid votes cast, a new election 
shall take place immediately, with the nominee receiving the fewest number of votes eliminated 
from the ballot. This procedure shall be followed until one nominee receives a majority vote. 


 
g.f. The voting shall be by ballot only where there are two (2) or more candidates for 
the same office. 


 
h.g. Cumulative voting shall not be permitted. 


 
Section 4. Duties of Credentials Committee and Elections Committee 


 
a. The Credentials Committee shall verify all delegates and determine the seating of any delegates 
not previously certified by their club. Prior to the elections taking place, the Credentials Committee 
shall report the delegate count to the Executive Director and Elections Committee, and shall make 
available to them, upon request, a list of the delegates. 


 
b. The Elections Committee shall have general charge of the election and of distributing and 
counting all ballots. The Elections Committee shall report promptly to the convention the results of 
all balloting. The report shall be signed by a majority of the committee. 


 
Section 5. Election of Lieutenant Governor and Lieutenant Governor-elect 


 
a. The Lieutenant Governor of each division shall hold, not earlier than the first week of the 
administrative year and not later than the annual district convention preceding the expiration of 
the Lieutenant Governor’s term, a meeting to elect a Lieutenant Governor and a Lieutenant 
Governor-elect for the next term. The time and place of this meeting shall be designated by the 
Lieutenant Governor. The president of each club in the division shall be notified at least 10 days 
prior to the meeting. Past Governors, current and past Trustees, and past Lieutenant Governors 
who are active members of a club in the division, as well as non-delegate club members, shall also 
be invited to the meeting and shall have the privilege of the floor, but shall be without vote. 


 
b. Each club* in the division is entitled to seat up to three (3) delegates, two (2) of whom should be 
the club president and president-designate, as well as nominate up to three (3) alternates who may 
serve if any delegate is absent. All club delegates and alternates shall be active members**. 


 
c.  Past Governors, current and past Trustees, and past Lieutenant Governors who are active members** 
of a club* in the division, as well as non-delegate club members**, shall also be invited to the meeting 
and shall be allowed to participate in discussion, but shall not have voting rights. 
 
c.d. Delegates from at least one-third a majority of the clubs* in the division shall constitute a quorum. 


 







Capital District Bylaws – Last Amended May 19, 2023, 
Page 10 


 


d.e. The Lieutenant Governor shall conduct the elections, unlesselections unless he/she is a 
candidate for election. If the presiding officer is absent or ineligible to serve, the meeting shall elect 
a delegate to conduct the elections. 


 
e.f. No person shall be considered a candidate for Lieutenant Governor or Lieutenant Governor-elect 
without first providing consent and an agreement to carry out the duties and responsibilities of 
office. 


 


f.g. The Lieutenant Governor-elect shall be the sole candidate for the office of Lieutenant Governor. 
However, in any year in which the Lieutenant Governor-elect was not previously elected by the division 
or is no longer qualified to hold the office other qualified candidates shall be permitted.  nothing shall 
preclude additional nominations of qualified candidates from the floor. 


 
g.h. Voting shall be by ballot only where there are two (2) or more candidates for the same 
position. A majority of all valid votes cast shall be necessary for elections. In the event that no 
nominee receives a majority of valid votes cast, a new election shall take place immediately, with 
the nominee receiving the fewest number of votes eliminated from the ballot. This procedure 
shall be followed until one nominee receives a majority vote. In the event of a tie vote, the 
Lieutenant Governor shall be entitled to vote. 


 
h.i. The presiding officer shall report the election results immediately to the Executive Director who 
shall report the results to Kiwanis International. 


 
i.j. A Lieutenant Governor-elect is not a district officer. 


 
Section 6. Election of Trustees. 


 
a. The Trustee of each region shall hold, not earlier than the first week of the administrative year 
and not later than annual district convention preceding the expiration of the Trustee’s term, a 
meeting to elect a new Trustee for the next term. The time and place of this meeting shall be 
designated by the Trustee. The president of each club in the region shall be notified at least thirty 
(30) days prior to the meeting. Past Governors, current and past Trustees, and past Lieutenant 
Governors who are active members of a club in the region, as well as non-delegate club members, 
shall also be invited to the meeting and shall have the privilege of the floor, but shall be without 
vote. 


 
b. Each club in the region is entitled to seat up to three (3) delegates, two (2) of whom should be 
the club president and president-designate, as well as nominate up to three alternates who may 
serve if any delegate is absent. All club delegates and alternates shall be active members**. 


 
c.  Past Governors, current and past Trustees, and past Lieutenant Governors who are active 
members** of a club* in the division, as well as non-delegate club members**, shall also be invited to 
the meeting and shall be allowed to participate in discussion, but shall not have voting rights. 


 
b.d. Delegates from at least one-third (1/3) of the clubs in the region shall constitute a quorum. 


 
c.e. The current Trustee shall conduct the elections, unlesselections unless he/she is a candidate 
for election. If the current Trustee is absent or ineligible to serve, the most recent past Trustee 
present and willing shall serve, or in the absence of a past Trustee, the meeting shall elect a 
delegate to conduct the elections. 







Capital District Bylaws – Last Amended May 19, 2023, 
Page 11 


 


 
d.f. No person shall be considered a candidate for Trustee without first providing written 
consent and an agreement to carry out the duties and responsibilities of office. Nothing shall 
preclude additional nomination of qualified candidates from the floor. 


 
e.g. Voting shall be by ballot only where there are two (2) or more candidates for the same 
position. A majority of all valid votes cast shall be necessary for elections. In the event that no 
nominee receives a majority of valid votes cast, a new election shall take place immediately, with 
the nominee receiving the fewest number of votes eliminated from the ballot. This procedure shall 
be followed until one nominee receives a majority vote. In the event of a tie vote, the presiding 
officer shall be entitled to vote. 


 
f.h. The presiding officer shall report the election results immediately to the Executive Director 


who shall report the results to Kiwanis International. 
 


 


 


Section 1. In the event of a vacancy in the office of Governor, Governor-elect, or Vice Governor, the 
vacancy for the unexpired term shall be filled by majority vote of the District Board from among the 
qualified past Governors, current or past Lieutenant Governors, or current or past Trustees. 


 
Section 2. In the event of a vacancy in the office of Immediate Past Governor, the qualified member** 
who served as Governor most recently prior to the Immediate Past Governor who is willing and able 
shall automatically become the Immediate Past Governor. 


 
Section 3. In the event of a vacancy in the office of Executive Director, the Governor shall appoint a 
qualified member** of a club* of the district to fill the office for the unexpired term, subject to the 
approval of the District Board. 


 
Section 4. In the event of a vacancy in the office of Lieutenant Governor or Trustee, the vacancy shall 
be filled as follows: 


 
a. If the term has one year or less remaining, a qualified member** shall be elected by a 
majority vote of the District Board to serve the remaining term; 


 
b. If the term has more than one year remaining, the district shall notify the clubs in the affected 
division or region that a replacement Lieutenant Governor or Trustee may be elected at a division 
or regional meeting to be held within sixty (60) days from the date of such vacancy. In the absence 
of a replacement being elected by the division or region, a qualified member** of a club in the 
same division or region shall be elected by a majority vote of the District Board. 


 
Section 5. In the event that the election of any district office cannot be completed for any reason, the 
District Board may consider the office to be vacant and may fill it as a vacancy as provided in these 
bylaws for such office. 


 
Section 6. In the event that, after election and before October 1, any district officer-designate is 
unable to serve for the year elected, the District Board-designate for said year shall fill the position as a 
vacancy as provided in these bylaws for such office. Disability or inability of a Governor-designate to 
serve for the year for which elected shall first be determined by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the entire 


ARTICLE 8VIII. VACANCIES IN OFFICE 







Capital District Bylaws – Last Amended May 19, 2023, 
Page 12 


 


District Board-designate. 
 


Section 7. In the event that the Governor is temporarily incapacitated and is unable to discharge the 
duties of office, as determined by two-thirds (2/3) vote of the entire district board, the District Board 
shall elect, by a majority vote, a qualified past Governor, current or past Trustee, or current or past 
Lieutenant Governor to become Acting Governor until the Governor is able to resume the duties of 
office. While the Governor is incapacitated, the Acting Governor shall have all the duties, 
responsibilities, and authority given to the Governor by these bylaws and the Bylaws of Kiwanis 
International. If, after a period of sixty (60) days, the district board determines by another two-thirds 
(2/3) vote of the entire board it appears to the Board that the Governor continues to be incapacitated 
and is not able to resume the duties and responsibilities of office, the Board may declare the office of 
Governor vacant and the vacancy shall be filled in accordance with the provisions for filling vacancies 
in such office as provided in these bylaws. 
 


 
 


Section 1. If a district officer is alleged by the Governor or two-thirds (2/3) of the District Board to be 
failing to perform his/her duties, the District Board shall investigate the allegation and determine the 
matter at a meeting held within forty-five (45) days after the investigation is complete or as soon as 
reasonably possible. Written notice of the allegation, investigation, and meeting shall be given to the 
accused officer at least thirty (30) days prior to the meeting. The accused officer shall be permitted to 
attend the meeting and present a defense. If the allegation(s) is sustained by no less than a two-third 
(2/3) vote of the entire board, the office shall be declared vacant. 


 
Section 2. 


 
a. “Conduct unbecoming a member of the Kiwanis family” is defined in Kiwanis International Policy 
as any conduct that: 
● is incompatible with the best interests of the public or of members of the Kiwanis family; or 
● tends to harm the standing of Kiwanis in the local or global community. 


 
b. If an allegation of ‘conduct unbecoming a member of the Kiwanis family’ is made against a 
district officer, allegedly committed while he/she was engaged in his/her duties as a district officer, 
the Governor shall immediately request from Kiwanis International a copy of the detailed 
procedures to be followed by the district and shall appoint a special investigator to investigate the 
matter. If an allegation is made against the Governor, the Immediate Past Governor shall fulfill the 
Governor’s role throughout the process it shall be referred to the Kiwanis International President 
and Executive Director to be handled under the process for Kiwanis International Officers. If the 
investigation report concludes there is a reasonable basis for the allegation, the Governor shall 
notify the accused officer and refer the matter to the District Board to conduct a hearing to decide 
the matter. The Board shall then meet and report its decision whether the accused officer did or 
did not engage in ‘conduct unbecoming,’ and, based on that decision, the appropriate disciplinary 
action, as follows: counseling, a verbal or written reprimand, or suspension or removal from office. 


 
c. If either the accused officer or the Investigator believes some part of the investigation was faulty 
or the determination was incorrect, either party has the right to request in writing reconsideration 
by the Board. The Board’s decision on the matter shall be final. 


 
d. If, at any point during the ‘conduct unbecoming’ process, possible criminal wrongdoing is 


ARTICLE 9IX. DISCIPLINE OF OFFICERS 







Capital District Bylaws – Last Amended May 19, 2023, 
Page 13 


 


discovered, the matter shall be reported to the proper authorities. 
 


e. All materials, facts, and information related to the investigation, determination, and 
reconsideration (if any) shall be kept confidential at all times by any parties or persons involved in 
any part of the process. 


 
f. The district shall retain all official records on the matter (Allegation Report, Investigation Report, 
Hearing Record, Board Report, and Reconsideration Record if any) in a confidential file as long as 
required by applicable law, and shall send a copy to Kiwanis International, to be retained in a 
confidential file. 


 
Section 3. If the district employs the Executive Director, or other district officers, the employment 
relationship supersedes the officer relationship. 


 


Section 4. Whenever a district officer is removed from office for reasons involving conduct 
unbecoming a member of the Kiwanis family or failure to perform the duties of office or resigns from 
office, that person may be declared by the District Board to be ineligible to hold a district office or 
appointment in the future. 


 


 


 


Section 1. Each club shall pay dues to the district for each active club member in an amount 
determined by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the district House of Delegates. Dues shall be based on each 
club’s annual membership report to Kiwanis International as of September 30 of each year and shall be 
due annually on October 1 and payable by November 30. 


 
Section 2.  If a Kiwanis club member was a former member of a Kiwanis International Service 
Leadership Programs club, the member’s club is not obligated A club shall be relieved of any 
obligation to pay district dues for any club member for a period of two (2) administrative years 
from the date of joining their first Kiwanis at club.  , provided such member was a former 
member of a Kiwanis International Service Leadership Program. 


 
Section 3. Prorated dDistrict dues shall be charged for each new member of a club on the same basis 
prorated schedule used by Kiwanis International. District Prorated dues are waived for any new 
member who was a former member of a Kiwanis International Sservice lLeadership pProgram club, 
upon joining their first Kiwanis club. 


 
Section 43. The District Board may establish registration fees for district conferences or other meetings. 


 
Section 54. No financial obligation shall be placed upon clubs of the district other than those provided 
in these bylaws or adopted by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the House of Delegates. 


 
 


 


Section 1. Not later than October 31, the District Board shall approve a budget of estimated revenues 
and expenses for the year, including capital expenditures. 


 


ARTICLE 10X. REVENUE 


ARTICLE 11XI. FINANCE 







Capital District Bylaws – Last Amended May 19, 2023, 
Page 14 


 


Section 2. The financial records of the district shall be examined at the end of each fiscal year by a 
qualified individual(s) or company selected by the District Board in accordance with Kiwanis 
International standards. The individual(s) should be qualified to perform such work in their respective 
jurisdiction. A copy of the annual financial examination shall be sent to the Executive Director of 
Kiwanis International by March 31 and to the District Board and shall be made available , upon 
request, to clubs and members in the district. 


 
Section 3. The District Board shall determine the official depository or depositories and shall designate 
persons authorized to disburse funds. 


 
Section 4. The district will comply with all governmental reporting requirements for finances, taxation, 
employment and any other areas of operation. 


 
Section 5. The district shall report its financial status annually to clubs and to the Kiwanis International 
Board and at such other times and including such information as requested by the Kiwanis 
International Board. 
 


 
 


Section 1. This district bylaws and policies will comply with all applicable laws in its local jurisdiction(s). 
 


Section 2. For authority on all matters not covered by these bylaws, the following documents will 
apply, in this order of priority: 


First--Kiwanis International Bylaws 
Second--Kiwanis International Policies and Procedures 
Third—District Policies or Procedures 
Fourth—Roberts Rules of Order Newly Revised (latest edition) 


 


 


Section 1. 
 


a. A club*, by majority vote of its active members**, may propose bylaw amendments to be 
considered at any convention of the district, provided they are submitted to the Executive Director 
not less than sixty (60) days prior to the date of the convention. Bylaw amendments may also be 
proposed by the District Board. 


 
b. No later than thirty (30) days prior to the district convention, the Executive Director shall make 
available to each club in the district a copy of all proposed bylaw amendments. 


 
c. Amendments to these bylaws may be adopted by two-thirds (2/3) of the valid votes cast by the 
delegates present and voting. 


 
Section 2. These bylaws and any amendments to them shall be in conformity with the Kiwanis 
International Bylaws, and the Standard Form for District Bylaws. Amendments previously verified by 
Kiwanis International to be in conformity may become effective immediately, unless a later effective date 
is specified upon adoption. Any amendments not in conformity shall not be effective until or unless 
approved by the Kiwanis International Board. Any questions regarding conformity shall be determined by 
the Kiwanis International Board. 


ARTICLE 12XII. OTHER AUTHORITIES 


ARTICLE 13XIII. AMENDMENTS 







Capital District Bylaws – Last Amended May 19, 2023, 
Page 15 


 


 
Section 3. If the Kiwanis International Bylaws are amended in such a way that necessitates revisions to 
the Standard Form for District Bylaws the District Board shall amend the district bylaws at the next 
regularly scheduled board meeting to reflect such revisions and shall inform clubs and members. 


 


 


Section 1. In the event that any provision of these bylaws is held invalid, all other provisions shall 
remain in effect. 


 


 


Section 1. The district will incorporate or register with the proper authority(ies) as may be required by 
applicable law and shall maintain such incorporation or registration as required by law. 


 
 


Section 2. If the district ceases operations for any reason, the last District Board will provide for proper 
distribution of district funds or other assets, in accordance with applicable law. If the District Board 
does not so provide, the Kiwanis International Board shall do so. 


 
 


 


Section 1. The district shall not be used for political purposes, including propaganda, trying to influence 
legislation, or participating in a campaign for or against any candidate for public office. 


 
Section 2. The administrative and fiscal year of the district shall be October 1 – September 30. 
 
*Every place where the word “club” appears with an asterisk refers to a club in good standing as defined 
by Kiwanis International, per Article 1. 
 
**Every place the term “active member” (or member) appears with an asterisk refers to a club member in  
good standing with their club as defined by the club, per Article 1.  


 
 


 


If the district’s bylaws are amended, send one copy of all adopted amendments and one copy of the 
revised bylaws to the Governance Specialist at Kiwanis International (governance@kiwanis.org) for 
review, approval, and filing. The district then will be notified when its amended bylaws are approved by 
Kiwanis International. 


 
These bylaws were adopted by the Kiwanis District of Capital Board on May 19, 2023.  


 
Certified by Jeffrey M. Wolff, Executive Director 


ARTICLE 14XIV.  SEVERABILITY 


ARTICLE 15XV. INCORPORATION AND DISSOLUTION 


ARTICLE 16XVI. GENERAL PROVISIONS 


ADOPTION CERTIFICATION 



about:blank






Redivisioning Task Force Report 


Completed 


• Divisional realignment to begin on October 1, 2023. 


• Regional alignment to being on October 1, 2023. 


• Naming of 5 out of 7 Regions. 


 


Divisions 4-8   


   


Name Votes  Pct 


Tri-State 7 41.18% 


Blue Ridge 10 58.82% 


Total 17 100% 


   


Divisions 5-6   


   


Name Votes  Pct 


DelMarVa 21 80.77% 


Mid-Atlantic 5 19.23% 


Total 26 100% 


 


Based on the votes, the region containing Divisions 4 & 8 will be called "Blue Ridge" and the 


region containing Divisions 5 & 6 will be called "DelMarVa" 


 
 


After the May Board Meeting, all tasks assigned to the Redivisioning Task Force shall be complete 


unless further directed by the Board of Trustees. 


 








5/12/23, 8:27 AM Gmail - Letter of Resignation


https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=0cf44936f6&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f:1765077587372981479&simpl=msg-f:1765077587372981479&simpl=m… 1/1


Jeffrey Wolff <jmwolff@gmail.com>


Letter of Resignation
2 messages


sylsran.hogue@verizon.net <sylsran.hogue@verizon.net> Fri, May 5, 2023 at 1:52 PM
Reply-To: sylsran.hogue@verizon.net
To: "jen.wolff@capitalkiwanis.org" <jen.wolff@capitalkiwanis.org>, "jeffrey.wolff@capitalkiwanis.org"
<jeffrey.wolff@capitalkiwanis.org>


Hi Jen,


This letter serve as my resignation of LTG of Division 1, It has been a pleasure to serve.


Due to family issues and work, I have not had the time or energy to give this position my full attention.


FYI, I did install two member for Northwest  and Far East on 12/19/22.
         Attended Shepard Park Easter/ woman program
         Attended Washington DC O Street Mansion event on April 3rd 2023
         Capitol Hill and Far East club are closing. 


Also, Let me know what amount of funds I need to return.


Wishing you the best.


Sylvia Hogue


Jen Wolff <jen.wolff@capitalkiwanis.org> Fri, May 5, 2023 at 2:04 PM
To: sylsran.hogue@verizon.net
Cc: "jeffrey.wolff@capitalkiwanis.org" <jeffrey.wolff@capitalkiwanis.org>


I accept your resignation and will pass it along to the board. I'm so sorry it didn't work out Sylvia - I understand. Family
and work come first. And you do not owe us any funds! 


I hope to see you at DCON.


Jen
[Quoted text hidden]








CAPITAL DISTRICT KIWANIS INTERNATIONAL
Quarterly Committee Report & Committee Evaluation


Committee: K-Kids Date: 4/30/2023 Chairperson: Christy Bosch
To be completed by the Committee Chairperson and submitted to the District Secretary
and supervising District Trustee no later than 21 days before each quarterly District
Board Meeting.


1. COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP
Committee fully staffed: Yes ___ No _x_ [Note: Regions without representation below.]


2. KIWANIS YEAR GOALS (list all committee’s annual goals)


GOAL % Complete


Build 5 New Kiwanis Kids Clubs- one in each area of the district: DC,
Delaware, Maryland, Virginia, West Virginia


80%


Create a directory/listing of the Active Terrific Kids and Bring Up Grades
Programs. Create a directory of the schools that are in our district that
do not have active clubs.


0


Reach out to all the sponsoring Kiwanis Clubs of K-kids Clubs that were
active last year to offer support. Call all the clubs that were inactive last
year. Find out what I can do to help them get started again. Call 5
schools that are in our district but do not have a K-kids club.


100%


Create a presentation to share to excite potential schools of the benefits
of sponsoring a K-Kids club. *A video has been created with a link to the
K-kids video.


50%


Spotlights on Terrific Kids and Bring of Grades. Utilize social media
platforms to showcase Kiwanis clubs’ programs at the end of each
marking period. Recognize clubs who participate at annual conferences
via certificates and program mention.
* I have pencils and certificates to share with participating schools at this
time.


80%


3. CHALLENGES OR ASSISTANCE NEEDED (use continuation sheet if necessary):
A member of my club came across Terrific kids pencils and certificates and I plan on distributing
them to the new clubs. I need the new clubs and the Kiwanis club sponsoring the K-Kids club to
reach out to me so I may send them resources. As of today, no K-kids clubs have responded to
share their projects or needs, even after the monthly newsletters.







The challenge is sorting through all the materials to organize what is needed. Mostly I would like
to be apart of a transition of this role to the next person. The human connection to improve the
overall understanding of what lessons learned during their time as a committee member are
invaluable.


4. COMMENTS (use continuation sheet if necessary):


I distribute a monthly “Keeping up with the K-Kids” newsletter which I send to Jen Wolf. If there
are other members of the district board who would like to received the K-Kids’ newsletter,
please let me know through email.


I am thankful for all the sweet, helpful people that make up the Kiwanis clubs.








CAPITAL DISTRICT KIWANIS INTERNATIONAL 
Quarterly	  Committee	  Report	  &	  Committee	  Evaluation	  


	  
	  
Committee:	  	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	   Date:	  	  
	  
Chairperson:	  
	  
To	  be	  completed	  by	  the	  Committee	  Chairperson	  and	  submitted	  to	  the	  District	  Secretary	  and	  
supervising	  District	  Trustee	  no	  later	  than	  21	  days	  before	  each	  quarterly	  District	  Board	  Meeting.	  
	  
1.	  COMMITTEE	  MEMBERSHIP	  
Committee	  fully	  staffed:	  Yes	  ___	   No	  ___	  [Note:	  Regions	  without	  representation	  below.]	  
	  
	  
	   	  	  
	  
	   	  
	  
	  
2.	  KIWANIS	  YEAR	  GOALS	  (list	  all	  committee’s	  annual	  goals)	   	   	  
	  


GOAL	   %	  Complete	  
	   	  


	   	  


	   	  


	   	  


	   	  


	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  







	   	   	  	  	  	  	  	  February	  8,	  2012	   	   	  


	  
3.	  CHALLENGES	  OR	  ASSISTANCE	  NEEDED	  (use	  continuation	  sheet	  if	  necessary):	  
	   	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
4.	  COMMENTS	  (use	  continuation	  sheet	  if	  necessary):	  	  	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
SIGNED:	  ____________________________________________________________________________________________________________	  





		cloudfront.net

		Microsoft Word - CDK Committee Quarterly Report.docx





		CommitteeName: Bylaws and Policies

		Date: 04/24/2023

		Chairperson: David Lurie

		FullyStaffedYes: Yes

		FullyStaffedNo: Off

		MembershipNotes: 

		GOALRow1: Review Kiwanis International Bylaws Modernization Revision and report any potential impacts to District operations and propose any amendments that the District could submit

		 CompleteRow1: 100

		GOALRow2: Review Lt. Governor criteria and propose any potential changes to appointment and/or election process that could allow individuals to serve as Lt. Governor from outside their home division

		 CompleteRow2: 100

		GOALRow3: Review eligibility requirements for International officers to potentially include residency requirements for candidates 

		 CompleteRow3: 50

		GOALRow4: Review proposed bylaws and policy changes as assigned by the Governor and/or Board of Trustees

		 CompleteRow4: 100

		GOALRow5: 

		 CompleteRow5: 

		Challenges: - Continuing to define role of Vice Governor in policy code.   - Reviewing whether to develop a Vice Governor pledge form   

		Comments: Submitted policy code change related to defining active campaigning.    Kiwanis International issued a revised standard for district bylaws on February 7.   Submitted agenda point for the the Board approve an updated document. Reviewing possible changes to the handling of Youth Outreach funds as District Foundation has been collecting funds for the last couple of years.       

		Signature: David Lurie








___ ___ 


 


CAPITAL DISTRICT KIWANIS INTERNATIONAL 
Quarterly Committee Report & Committee Evaluation 


 
 


Committee: Diversity, Equity, Inclusion & 
Belonging 


Date: May 2023 


 


 


Chairperson: Josh Hiscock 
 


 
To be completed by the Committee Chairperson and submitted to the District Secretary and supervising District Trustee no 
later than 21 days before each quarterly District Board Meeting. 


 
1. COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 
Committee mostly  staffed:  


 
Kiwanis: Nine (9) members 
CKI: One (1) member 
Key Club: Four (4) members 
Aktion Club: Working to devise a plan to add a member before Kiwanis ICON 


2. KIWANIS YEAR GOALS 
 


GOAL % Complete 


 


Establish a committee of no less than four (4) Kiwanis members, three (3) Key Club members, two (2) 
CKI members, and one (1) Aktion Club member 


 


Progress: 
Committee is 


populated with 
Kiwanis (9), Key 


Club (4), and 
CKI (1) 


members 
 


Conduct no fewer than eight (8) monthly DEI meetings during the 2022-2023 Kiwanis year 


 


Progress:      
Six (6) meetings 


complete 


 


Conceptualize and deliver a DEI-related educational workshop at CKI DCON 2023, Kiwanis Mid-Year 
2023, Key Club DCON 2023, and Kiwanis DCON 2023 


 


Progress: 
Sessions 


Delivered @ 
CKI DCON / 
Kiwanis Mid-
Year & Key 
Club DCON 


 


Conceptualize and deliver quarterly DEI-related online educational offerings for Capital District Kiwanis 
Family members (November, February, June, September) 


 


Progress: 
November & 


February 
Session 


Complete; June 
Session Planned 


Create resources for Capital District Kiwanis family clubs that encourage inclusive practices while also 
serving as a resource and ombudspersons for clubs and members with concerns about issues of diversity, 


equity, inclusion, and social justice 
In Process 


   







3. CHALLENGES OR ASSISTANCE NEEDED: 
 


 
 


The Capital District Kiwanis Family Committee on Diversity, Equity, Inclusion & Belonging has seen 
many successes during the 2022-2023 Kiwanis year. The committee placed a DEIB consideration topic 
for each month in the Capital District Club Resource Guidebook. This gives clubs a conversation starter 
each month to launch into a relevant DEIB-related topic. The committee is using a task force model this 
year, allowing committee members to assist with specific short-term projects. This has increased 
committee participation, with every member already volunteering to assist with at least one project.  
 
The first task force was created in October 2022 and successfully planned and executed the committee’s 
first online educational offering – a webinar titled “Why DEI?” on November 30 via Zoom. The second 
session on “Creating a Sense of Belonging In Your Club” took place on February 22 via Zoom. A third 
session on implicit bias is being planned for June 2023. A final online session will be planned for 
September 2023. 
 
Discussions have begun on how we might propose a new position within each club – the DEI Coordinator 
or DEI Chairperson, much like all clubs are expected to assign a member to serve as the Membership and 
Public Relations chair. This idea is in development, and a recommendation, position description, and 
proposal for implementation are forthcoming.  
 
A small group of committee members planned the successful in-person workshop session for CKI DCON 
/ Kiwanis Mid-Year. Another small group of Key Club members planned and executed a DEIB workshop 
for the Key Club District Convention, a session that was repeated twice during the conference. A group 
will soon begin planning an in-person offering for Kiwanis DCON in August.  


 
 


4. COMMENTS: 
 


After successful events in November and February, and in light of the fact that our June event is fast 
approaching, all members of the Capital District Kiwanis Family leadership must work with Kiwanis Lt. 
Governors, Key Club Lt. Governors, and CKI District Board members to spread the word about our 
online educational offerings to ensure adequate participation and engagement. Diversity, equity, 
inclusion, and belonging are important, and all clubs should participate somehow! This information is 
only getting to a few clubs and members, and there it needs to be in the hands of even more Kiwanis 
family members. 


 
 
 


SIGNED:       
 
 


 








District ID District name


Met 


President's 


Challenge?


Percent 


to Goal


2022‐23 


Unrestricted 


club giving


2022‐23 


President's 


Challenge Goal
K01 Alabama no 68% 8,787$            12,963$           
K02 California‐Nevada‐Hawaii no 35% 11,454$         32,936$           
K03 Capital no 44% 19,956$         45,486$           
K04 Carolinas no 51% 14,013$         27,700$           
K05 Florida no 63% 32,138$         50,715$           
K06 Georgia no 61% 21,086$         34,303$           
K07 Illinois‐Eastern Iowa no 42% 15,278$         36,549$           
K08 Indiana no 49% 13,221$         27,138$           
K09 Kansas no 63% 5,984$            9,538$              
K10 Kentucky‐Tennessee no 48% 8,887$            18,421$           
K11 Louisiana‐Mississippi‐West Tennessee no 49% 15,788$         32,181$           
K12 Michigan no 53% 23,987$         45,188$           
K13 Minnesota‐Dakotas no 57% 17,777$         31,106$           
K14 Missouri‐Arkansas no 44% 13,362$         30,264$           
K15 Montana no 44% 2,205$            5,038$              
K16 Nebraska‐Iowa no 68% 19,828$         29,270$           
K17 New England and Bermuda no 45% 7,829$            17,428$           
K18 New Jersey no 53% 9,271$            17,554$           
K19 New York no 18% 10,155$         55,703$           
K20 Ohio no 45% 10,172$         22,703$           
K21 Eastern Canada and Caribbean no 64% 8,508$            13,322$           
K22 Pacific Northwest no 36% 12,212$         34,306$           
K23 Pennsylvania no 46% 6,959$            15,077$           
K24 Rocky Mountain no 23% 3,725$            15,888$           
K25 Southwest no 27% 6,235$            22,849$           
K26 Texas‐Oklahoma no 34% 12,687$         37,112$           
K27 Utah‐Idaho no 58% 2,384$            4,142$              
K28 Western Canada no 8% 150$               2,000$              
K30 Wisconsin‐Upper Michigan no 32% 8,592$            26,462$           
K32 Non‐Districted, Europe no 0% ‐$                2,000$              
K33 Colombia no 0% ‐$                2,000$              
K34 Australia no 0% ‐$                2,000$              
K35 New Zealand‐South Pacific no 8% 160$               2,000$              
K36 Philippine Luzon no 54% 5,190$            9,622$              
K37 Austria no 0% ‐$                2,000$              
K38 Belgium‐Luxembourg no 2% 159$               6,533$              
K39 Iceland‐Faroes no 0% ‐$                2,000$              
K40 Norden no 0% ‐$                2,000$              
K41 Switzerland‐Liechtenstein no 0% ‐$                2,000$              
K42 Philippine South no 58% 3,157$            5,408$              
K43 Japan no 0% ‐$                28,587$           
K44 Taiwan no 0% ‐$                89,389$           
K45 Italy‐San Marino no 1% 51$                 6,351$              
K46 Netherlands no 0% ‐$                2,000$              
K50 Germany no 0% ‐$                2,000$              
K51 Korea, Republic of (Provisional District) no 0% ‐$                2,000$              
K52 France‐Monaco no 0% ‐$                2,000$              


2022‐2023 President's Challenge Announcement
Kiwanis Children's Fund President, Filip Delanote, is challenging all District Chairs to work with your district's leadership to achieve a 


10 percent increase in the amount of money given directly to mission dollars by active clubs. Below you can find the breakdown of 


what 10 percent increase looks like for your district. 







District ID District name


Met 


President's 


Challenge?


Percent 


to Goal


2022‐23 


Unrestricted 


club giving


2022‐23 


President's 


Challenge Goal
K53 Non‐Districted, Asia‐Pacific no 0% ‐$                2,000$              
K54 Non‐Districted, Latin America no 0% ‐$                2,000$              
K55 Non‐Districted, Africa no 0% ‐$                2,000$              
K56 Malaysia no 74% 9,112$            12,396$           
K57 Poland (Kiwanis Nation) no 0% ‐$                2,000$              
K59 Czech Republic and Slovak Republic (Kiwanis Nation) no 0% ‐$                2,000$              
K60 Ecuador (Provisional District) no 5% 100$               2,000$              
K61 United Kingdom (Kiwanis Nation) no 0% ‐$                2,000$              
K63 Romania (Provisional District) no 0% ‐$                2,000$              
K65 India (Provisional District) no 0% ‐$                2,000$              
K67 Turkey (Kiwanis Nation) no 0% ‐$                2,000$              
K68 Panama (Provisional District) no 0% ‐$                2,000$              
K69 Nepal no 0% ‐$                2,000$              


0 360,558$       959,625$         







Division
name


Southwest Waterfront Washington DC Division 1 12 365.00$                        500.00$            -   
Fredericksburg Division 2 30 365.00$                        300.00$            -   
Mount Vernon, Fairfax County Division 2 22 500.00$                        500.00$            -   
Alexandria Division 2 31 3,520.00$                    400.00$           3,200.00$      
Fairfax Division 2 20 365.00$                        170.00$            -   
Tysons Division 2 17 112.20$                        102.00$           102.00$          
Woodbridge Division 2 15 401.50$                        200.00$           365.00$          
Bethesda Division 3 16 401.50$                        365.00$           365.00$          
Leisure World, Silver Spring Division 3 15 99.00$                           100.00$           90.00$             
Mitchellville Division 3 15 176.00$                        100.00$           160.00$          
Rockville Division 3 17 187.00$                        170.00$           170.00$          
Wheaton-Silver Spring Division 3 17 220.00$                        200.00$           200.00$          
Capital - Next Generation e-Club Division 4 18 242.00$                        180.00$           220.00$          
Crofton Division 4 54 365.00$                        300.00$            -   
Ellicott City Division 4 27 2,904.00$                    270.00$           2,640.00$      
Reisterstown Division 6 9 82.50$                           75.00$              75.00$             
Towson-Timonium Division 6 13 1,265.00$                    150.00$           1,150.00$      
Wilmington Division 6 25 286.00$                        250.00$           260.00$          
Frederick, MD Division 7 27 401.50$                        400.00$           365.00$          
Westminster Division 7 37 250.80$                        250.00$           228.00$          
Charles Town Division 8 19 365.00$                        100.00$           
Front Royal Division 8 20 401.50$                        365.00$           365.00$          
Winchester Division 8 104 2,200.00$                    1,000.00$      2,000.00$      
Charlottesville Division 9 43 550.00$                        500.00$           500.00$          
Staunton Division 9 47 1,501.50$                    240.00$           1,365.00$      
Colonial Heights Division 10 39 440.00$                        410.00$           400.00$          
Ashland Division 11 53 1,100.00$                    1,000.00$      1,000.00$      
Richmond Division 11 134 957.00$                        804.00$           870.00$          
Colonial Capital, Williamsburg Division 12 67 1,859.00$                    720.00$           1,690.00$      
Grafton Division 12 30 330.00$                        1,352.00$      300.00$          
Middlesex, Saluda Division 12 50 1,500.40$                    300.00$           1,364.00$      
Toano Division 12 17 401.50$                        1,190.00$      365.00$          
Carrollton Division 13 32 365.00$                        160.00$            -   
Denbigh, Newport News Division 13 11 365.00$                        300.00$            -   
Greater Hilton Division 13 49 1,350.80$                    288.00$           1,228.00$      
Mercury 64, Hampton Division 13 14 110.00$                        100.00$           100.00$          
Lynnhaven-Virginia Beach Division 14 12 110.00$                        100.00$           100.00$          
Norfolk Division 14 57 1,820.00$                    365.00$            -   
Virginia Beach Division 14 43 440.00$                        200.00$           400.00$          
Virginia Beach Virginia, Town Center Division 14 21 365.00$                        126.00$            -   
Botetourt County, Troutville Division 15 28 165.00$                        140.00$           150.00$          
Fort Hill, Lynchburg Division 15 8 365.00$                        200.00$            -   
Lynchburg Division 15 33 500.00$                        500.00$            -   
Abingdon Division 16 35 365.00$                        235.00$            -   
Christiansburg Division 16 64 365.00$                        320.00$            -   
Marion Division 16 26 137.50$                        125.00$           125.00$          
Montgomery County-Blacksburg Division 16 43 440.00$                        1,000.00$      400.00$          
Wythe County Division 16 19 104.50$                        100.00$           95.00$             
Clinch River, Richlands Division 17 11 55.00$                           100.00$           50.00$             
Council Division 17 14 365.00$                        100.00$            -   
Haysi Division 17 28 154.00$                        145.00$           140.00$          
Hurley Division 17 18 401.50$                        105.00$           365.00$          
McClure River Division 17 13 66.00$                           100.00$           60.00$             
Norton Division 17 27 110.00$                        100.00$           100.00$          
St Paul-Castlewood Division 17 15 110.00$                        100.00$           100.00$          
Wise Division 17 28 159.50$                        150.00$           145.00$          
Weirton Division 18 21 151.80$                        126.00$           138.00$          
Fairmont Division 19 11 110.00$                        100.00$           100.00$          
Suncrest Area, Morgantown Division 19 17 110.00$                        100.00$           100.00$          
Mercer County Division 20 9 365.00$                        50.00$               -   
West Charleston Division 20 28 1,100.00$                    1,000.00$      1,000.00$      


34,740.50$                 19,498.00$   8,615.00$      


2021-22


Capital District Club Giving to KCF as of 5/1/2023


TOTALS
Ask amount (10% 


for President's 
Challenge)


2022-23 2021-22


Club name
Certified 
members


Ask amount (10% 
for President's 


Challenge) 2022-23







Club Individual Other Total


Alabama K01 $27,004 $12,963 $8,078 $30,949 $500 $39,527 $14.07


Australia K34 $1,686 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0.00


Austria K37 $5,311 $2,000 $0 $101 $4,090 $4,191 $1.68


Belgium-Luxembourg K38 $23,349 $6,533 $159 $270 $1,000 $1,428 $0.37


California-Nevada-Hawaii K02 $100,717 $32,936 $9,977 $21,531 $22 $31,529 $3.33


Capital K03 $86,806 $45,486 $17,698 $18,026 $321 $36,045 $8.82


Carolinas K04 $53,343 $27,700 $13,213 $8,743 $710 $22,667 $5.33


Colombia K33 $520 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0.00


Eastern Canada and the Caribbean K21 $16,618 $13,322 $5,428 $1,080 $0 $6,508 $0.84


Ecuador (Provisional District) K60 $1,100 $2,000 $100 $100 $0 $200 $0.64


Florida K05 $77,055 $50,715 $29,887 $9,814 $60 $39,762 $7.15


France-Monaco K52 $191 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0.00


Georgia K06 $60,738 $34,303 $16,323 $5,572 $276 $22,171 $4.74


Germany K50 $290 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0.00


Iceland-Faroes K39 $1,300 $2,000 $0 $1,150 $0 $1,150 $1.62


Illinois-Eastern Iowa K07 $73,228 $36,549 $14,707 $9,502 $2,500 $26,708 $5.12


Indiana K08 $88,679 $27,138 $12,909 $20,235 $5,050 $38,194 $8.97


Italy-San Marino K45 $21,305 $6,351 $51 $30 $0 $81 $0.04


Japan K43 $35,252 $28,587 $0 $10,500 $0 $10,500 $5.24


Kansas K09 $42,939 $9,538 $5,864 $8,446 $0 $14,310 $10.01


Kentucky-Tennessee K10 $38,258 $18,421 $8,537 $8,769 $1,006 $18,312 $4.75


Louisiana-Mississippi-West Tenn. K11 $50,370 $32,181 $14,688 $4,052 $0 $18,740 $5.10


Malaysia K56 $11,888 $12,396 $8,612 $1,056 $0 $9,668 $7.35


Michigan K12 $78,970 $45,188 $22,303 $8,194 $1 $30,498 $9.30


Minnesota-Dakotas K13 $51,664 $31,106 $17,216 $13,082 $0 $30,298 $11.23


Missouri-Arkansas K14 $44,951 $30,264 $13,262 $5,243 $60 $18,565 $4.89


Kiwanis Children's Fund


District Giving Report


As of March 31, 2023


Per-Member 


Challenge
District/Provisonal District


2021-22


Total Giving (US$)


2022-23


President's 


Challenge


Club Goal (US$)


2022-23 Giving (US$)







Club Individual Other Total


Per-Member 


Challenge
District/Provisonal District


2021-22


Total Giving (US$)


2022-23


President's 


Challenge


Club Goal (US$)


2022-23 Giving (US$)


Montana K15 $12,166 $5,038 $2,205 $1,910 $0 $4,115 $4.47


Nebraska-Iowa K16 $92,797 $29,270 $18,879 $22,110 $900 $41,889 $10.71


Nepal K69 $6,000 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0.00


Netherlands K46 $334 $2,000 $0 $520 $0 $520 $0.30


New England and Bermuda K17 $44,502 $17,428 $7,629 $3,165 $1,000 $11,794 $3.94


New Jersey K18 $41,533 $17,554 $8,721 $10,573 $2,590 $21,883 $16.58


New York K19 $113,844 $55,703 $8,903 $30,937 $120 $39,960 $6.85


New Zealand-South Pacific K35 $3,660 $2,000 $160 $0 $0 $160 $0.22


Norden K40 $1,215 $2,000 $0 $81 $0 $81 $0.12


Ohio K20 $79,556 $22,703 $9,622 $21,931 $2,690 $34,243 $6.08


Pacific Northwest K22 $66,151 $34,306 $11,248 $22,116 $6,125 $39,489 $7.30


Panama (Provisional District) K68 $1,593 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0.00


Pennsylvania K23 $34,276 $15,077 $5,605 $4,789 $0 $10,394 $3.77


Philippine Luzon K36 $14,092 $9,622 $5,190 $150 $0 $5,340 $1.18


Philippine South K42 $5,930 $5,408 $3,157 $585 $0 $3,742 $1.27


Rocky Mountain K24 $39,120 $15,888 $2,225 $7,979 $0 $10,204 $4.88


Romania (Provisional District) K63 $362 $2,000 $0 $40 $0 $40 $0.07


Southwest K25 $30,746 $22,849 $4,661 $5,399 $505 $10,565 $5.21


Switzerland-Liechtenstein K41 $6,231 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0.00


Taiwan K44 $176,159 $89,389 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0.00


Texas-Oklahoma K26 $52,314 $37,112 $11,333 $10,336 $567 $22,236 $4.43


Utah-Idaho K27 $12,165 $4,142 $2,384 $1,940 $0 $4,324 $4.82


Western Canada K28 $350 $2,000 $150 $0 $0 $150 $0.23


Wisconsin-Upper Michigan K30 $41,681 $26,462 $8,162 $8,091 $50 $16,303 $5.47


TOTALS $1,870,311 $939,628 $329,245 $339,095 $30,143 $698,483








 
 
 
 
 
 
 


      
 
 
To:   Capital District of Kiwanis Board of Officers 
From:   Kristina Dlugozima, Key Club District Administrator, Capital District 
Date:   April 27, 2023 
Subject:  Capital District of Key Club Update 
  
 
 
District Convention 
District Convention was held March 24-26th at the Hyatt Regency Crystal City, VA.  While we did 
not meet our goal attendance, we were happy to have around 450 attendees to celebrate a 
successful service year, elect new leaders, and learn through our slate of over 35 workshops for 
students and advisors.  We made some logistical changes this year and overall, the weekend 
was a success.  A big thank you to DCON Lead Nicole McDermott and the rest of the adult 
committee for their hard work throughout the weekend.  As we were not able to meet our goal 
& budgeted attendance, our future contracts will lower our minimums to make the event more 
financially sound as we continue to re-work the event to make it more appealing to students 
and advisors. 
 
 
Key Club Leadership 
At District Convention, three of our four district executives were elected:  District Governor 
Erina Haque from Lake Braddock Secondary School, District Secretary/Treasurer Jason Yoo from 
Chantilly High School, and District Webmaster Pallavi Sundaram from Parkersburg High School.  
As no one ran for District Editor at DCON, Governor Erina appointed Hailey Reynolds from 
Sherando High School to that position this past week.  Additionally, the Key Club District board 
is now full with over 30 students applying for 8 LTG-at-Large positions.  Training for the board 
will begin soon as the students become actively involved in the governing of the district and 
being a liaison to their divisions. 
 
 
Membership 
As of 4/27, the Capital District of Key Club has 11,050 dues paid members in 209 dues paid 
clubs.  This is an increase of 801 members across the same number of clubs over the end of last 
year.  While we remain at the same number of clubs so far, we have chartered 5 clubs this year 
and reactivated 16 clubs this year.  We expect these numbers to continue to grow through the 
remainder of the school year and into September.  While this is all good news, we have 9 clubs 
that were active last year that are not expected to return this year. 
 
 
2023-24 Goals & Priorities 
Last Key Club year revolved heavily around reimagining the Key Club experience in the post-
pandemic world and building membership back up.  While we continue to work on that, we will 
tackle two additional items this year – the re-divisioning of our Key Clubs and creation of a 


K E Y  C L U B 
 







strategic plan.  Where reasonable, Key Club divisions will follow the new Kiwanis divisions but 
split into smaller divisions in most cases.  I expect that we will decrease from 37 current 
divisions to a more likely 30-32.  Our strategic plan will give us a roadmap on priorities and 
goals for the next three years to ensure that we are pushing the district forward little by little 
each year. 
 
Please feel free to reach out to me at any time at kmsd512@gmail.com or 703-868-6224. 
 
Yours in Service, 
Kristina Dlugozima 
Capital District Key Club Administrator  
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


a Kiwanis -fami ly member 
keyclub.org 


Developing competent ,  capable,  and car ing leaders  s ince 1925 








CAPITAL DISTRICT KIWANIS INTERNATIONAL 
Quarterly)Committee)Report)&)Committee)Evaluation)


!
!
Committee:!! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! Date:!!
)
Chairperson:!
!
To!be!completed!by!the!Committee!Chairperson!and!submitted!to!the!District!Secretary!and!
supervising!District!Trustee!no!later!than!21!days!before!each!quarterly!District!Board!Meeting.!
)
1.!COMMITTEE!MEMBERSHIP!
Committee)fully)staffed:)Yes)___) No)___)[Note:)Regions)without)representation)below.])
)
)
) ))
)
) )
)
)
2.!KIWANIS!YEAR!GOALS)(list)all)committee’s)annual)goals)) ) )
)


GOAL) %)Complete)
) )


) )


) )


) )


) )


)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)







) ) ))))))February)8,)2012) ) )


)
3.)CHALLENGES!OR!ASSISTANCE!NEEDED)(use)continuation)sheet)if)necessary):)
) )
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
4.)COMMENTS)(use)continuation)sheet)if)necessary):)))
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
SIGNED:)____________________________________________________________________________________________________________)





		CommitteeName: Leadership Development and Education

		Date: April 29, 2023

		Chairperson: Lynnette Embree

		FullyStaffedYes: Off

		FullyStaffedNo: Yes

		MembershipNotes: My goal for this year was to add additional CLE Instructors. A few have been added in the first four months of 2023. Ultimately, I would like to have a minimum of two and as many as five CLE Instructors in each division to conduct training. This helps with burnout and allowing for different learning styles to learn in way that is optimum for them.
It would be a tremendous help to have a full-staffed committee to help in the workload and that will be the focus for the last half of this Kiwanis year.


		GOALRow1: Add additional educators to the team. 

		 CompleteRow1: 50%

		GOALRow2: Continue the 5 O'Clock Somewhere series, incorporating six paid speakers.

		 CompleteRow2: 16.67%

		GOALRow3: Write six articles on leadership for inclusion in the Capital District newsletter

		 CompleteRow3: 67%

		GOALRow4: 

		 CompleteRow4: 

		GOALRow5: 

		 CompleteRow5: 

		Challenges: There was some confusion as to who was to schedule the CLE training and I believe we have worked that out for the moment. I would like to recommend that the Capital District Board have an understanding or perhaps a policy statement as to WHO is to schedule the CLE training each year. My recommendation would be the Regional Trustee, the Current LTG, the Incoming LTG and the CLE Instructors need to collaborate to schedule the date/time/location of the training as well as encourage all affected leadership members to attend. 


		Comments: I am very grateful for all of the assistance I have received in scheduling the CLE trainings throughout the District. We've added some new instructors. I've gotten better clarity on who the keeper of the CLE instructors are. When I've asked for assistance, I have gotten it. Thank you!
We'll keep looking for additional instructors so those who wish to do less can do so and the burden isn't so heavy on the remaining instructors.

		Signature: Lynnette L. Embree





